
      
 

                 CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 
                                                                                       Tuesday – January 23, 2024 – 6:00 PM  
                             

 
    Shawn O’Neill,

Mayor 
soneill@cityofnapavine.com  
 

Brian Watson, 
Council Position No.1 
bwatson@cityofnapavine.com  
 

Ivan Wiediger, 
Council Position No.2 
iwiediger@cityofnapavine.com  
 

Don Webster, 
Council Position No.3 
dwebster@cityofnapavine.com  
 

Heather Stewart, 
Council Position No.4 
hstewart@cityofnapavine.com 
 

Duane Crouse, 
Council Position No.5  
dcrouse@cityofnapavine.com 
 
 
Staff Members 
Rachelle Denham, 
City Clerk 
 

Michelle Whitten, 
City Treasurer 
 

Bryan Morris, 
PW Director 
Community Development 
 

John Brockmueller, 
Chief of Police 
 

Allen Unzelman 
Honorable Judge-Municipal Court 
 

Jim Buzzard, 
Legal Counsel 
 
 

City of Napavine 
407 Birch Ave SW 
P O Box 810 
Napavine, WA  98565 
360-262-3547 
 
City Website 
www.cityofnapavine.com 
 
 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
II.   INVOCATION 
III.   PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
IV.   ROLL CALL 
V.   APPROVAL OF AGENDA – AS PRESENTED 

 
VI. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES  

1) Regular Council Meeting – January 09, 2024 
    

 
VII. STAFF & COUNCIL REPORT   

VIII. CITIZEN COMMENTS – NON-AGENDA ITEMS 

 

IX. NEW BUSINESS 

1) Vouchers – M. Whitten 
2) Lewis County 911 ILA 2024 – J. Brockmueller 

 
 

                                       
X. ADJOURNMENT – CLOSE OF MEETING 

 
Council Meeting is held in person and via Teleconference.  

         Teleconference Information 

         Dial-in number (US): (720) 740-9753 

             Access code: 8460198 

         To join the online meeting: https://join.freeconferencecall.com/rdenham8 

mailto:soneill@cityofnapavine.com
mailto:bwatson@cityofnapavine.com
mailto:iwiediger@cityofnapavine.com
mailto:dwebster@cityofnapavine.com
mailto:hstewart@cityofnapavine.com
mailto:dcrouse@cityofnapavine.com
http://www.cityofnapavine.com/
https://join.freeconferencecall.com/rdenham8


 

NAPAVINE CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
January 9, 2023, 6:00 P.M. 

Napavine City Hall, 407 Birch Ave SW, Napavine, WA 
 

 
 

 

CALL TO ORDER: 

Mayor Shawn O’Neill called the regular city council meeting to order at 6:00 pm.  

INVOCATION:  
The invocation was led by Bryan Morris. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  
Mayor Shawn O’Neill led the flag salute.           

ROLL CALL:   

Council members present: Shawn O’Neill Mayor, Ivan Wiediger Councilor #2, Don Webster Councilor #3, Heather 
Stewart Councilor #4, and Duane Crouse Mayor Pro Tem. 

City staff members present: City Clerk - Rachelle Denham, Treasurer – Michelle Whitten, Chief of Police – John 
Brockmueller, CD PW Director - Bryan Morris. 

 

CONSENT/APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

MOVED: Heather Stewart Motion: Approval of Agenda- As Presented. 
 SECONDED: Ivan Wiediger 

Discussion: No Discussion 
VOTE ON MAIN MOTION: 5-0 Motion Carried: 5 aye and 0 nay.                                        

 

APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES  

MOVED: Ivan Wiediger Motion: Approval of Meeting Minutes - Regular 
Council Meeting December 12, 2023. SECONDED: Brian Watson 

Discussion: No Discussion 
VOTE ON MAIN MOTION: 5-0 Motion Carried: 5 aye and 0 nay.                                        

STAFF & COUNCIL REPORTS:  

John Brockmueller – Chief of Police 
• Greetings to the council, Stats for December will be provided at the next meeting. 

 
Bryan Morris - PW/CD Director   

• Report in writing. Ops are normal. 
 
Michelle Whitten – Treasurer 

• The Audit is wrapping up.  
 
Rachelle Denham – Clerk 

• No report. Ops are normal.  
 
 
 
 



2 
 

Planning Commission 
• No report. 

 
County Commissioner – Lindsey Pollock 

• No report. 
 
LCFD 5 

• No report. 
 
Duane Crouse – Mayor Pro Tem 

• No report. 
 
Heather Stewart – Councilor #4 

• No report. 
 
Don Webster – Councilor #3 

• No report. 
 
Ivan Wiediger – Councilor #2 

• The Lions Club meeting will be held at the Fire Dept.  on January 11th at 6pm 
 
Brian Watson – Councilor #1 

• No report. 
 
Shawn O’Neill – Mayor 

• Did a walkthrough of the Mayme Kitchen, it is going to be great! Verified power outlets, sink, bathrooms, 
access closet and is turning out to be something else that everyone can enjoy. Mayor’s meeting on Friday 
and is looking like Napavine will be the small city representing Distressed Counties for the .09 fund, this is 
a good thing. Will also serve on the Regional Transportation Group making sure that city of Napavine will 
be represented at state and federal level.  
 

 

CITIZEN COMMENTS – NON-AGENDA ITEMS:  **This is a brief summary and not verbatim. The recording link can be accessed 
for entire citizen comment.    

• Jerry Owens Napavine Funtime Festival: Expressed his concerns about the wrong statements going 
around the community and hopes to clear it up. Jerry was reading from a notebook. To summarize; The 
PTA not being allowed is not true. The Booster Club has always been accepted. They asked them not to 
sell hamburgers because the event is not big enough to have two of the same. The Lions Club statement is 
not true, and he believes some of the rumors were from the Lions Club. They have always worked with 
the Fire Department. The program book was done on a 50/50 and received $353 to the FT Festival. The 
Funtime Festival was going to split the money, but Greg told him to keep it because the Lions Club in 
Napavine was going to be closing down. The FT Festival event is held on private property with the 
exception of the streets. Insurance is so expensive and will not be doing the chain saw demonstration this 
year due to the cost. They can’t find affordable insurance and therefore can’t have a bounce house, 
carnival, and chain saw due to the cost. Entertainment in the past included popular performers. The FT 
Festival has donated several items to the Fire Dept over the years including stuff for inside ambulances 
and, jaws of life, infrared lights. Little League received rakes, pitching machines and a water machine for 
the fields. Some future events would include a 5k run, Cornhole Tournament, BB Tournaments. They have 
also donated BB uniforms and helmets along with having old ones redone. Donations up to $30k went 
towards the grandstands at school. Jerry read messages off his cell phone between the mayor and himself 



3 
 

referencing when the mayor reached out about a meeting to be scheduled and the council assuming 
leadership roles for the Funtime Festival. He also spoke briefly about Miss Newaukum Valley that Greg 
Peterson and Chief Saylers were part of. Carnival rides are too expensive and with the cost of insurance 
this type of event will not work. The Princess Napawinah program is dead and gone now. Jerry continued 
to share information. He wants to clear his family name because it has been drug through the mud. He 
believes that his family has put in over 200 years serving the City of Napavine and is proud of his Funtime 
Family and wants to move forward. The mayor thanked Jerry for coming to share and asked Jerry moving 
forward to come and ask for help when you need it, which would build a community of help. He also 
asked if the Funtime Festival is open to join on with the Lions Club. He is hopeful that this is a way to get 
help with insurance so a successful festival can happen. Councilor Heather Stewart expressed how much 
she respects the Owens family and for all that has been done for our community. She stated that she 
disagreed with the council about being able to take over the festival because that is your own business. If 
the council did move forward with a new festival that it won’t be named the Funtime Festival, and that 
stuff wasn’t executed properly in the beginning. Her hope is that we can all work together moving 
forward.  Rick Carns would love to see the community work together and his hope is to be the coolest 
little town South of the North pole. Is there a way that everyone can come together to make it work? He 
stated what has been done is done and it’s time to work together and move forward. He’d love to see a 
night Christmas Parade to light the town up. This is going to take volunteers, help and money but it can be 
done if everyone works together and then we can all be proud of it.  
 

• Leroy West: He has been involved with the Funtime Festival for thirty years. Back when there was a 
derby, mud bogs, burn offs but the city has run out of room (private property). The room has to be there 
in order to have these types of events.  
 

• Jeremy Johnson 282-14 Woodard Rd: He voiced his concerns and disapproval of the 240-home 
development on Woodard Rd. They were fine with the one-acre homes but that was turned down or 
made impossible by the city and thanks to the Urban Growth Area they don’t want to be part of it. Seems 
to be zero regard to the lifelong residents and small-town way of life. Zero regard to the impacts on 
traffic, schools, crime, and overall quality of life, he states, we are not a bedroom community. There is 
very little public notice(s) about the one workshop that occurred in Feb 2020. It was posted around town, 
but nobody knew about it on Woodard Rd, that is why he is here today. Council Ivan has lived on 
Woodard Rd. his whole life and has admitted to him that he doesn’t want development down there and 
also knows that there is salmon in the creek in the Fall time.  He then stated that he messaged Shawn 
back when he first became Mayor about the salmon bearing creek, the mayor recalled the message. He 
thinks this project is absurd and outrageous. He doesn’t understand how this can be legal with the 
Ecology laws, storm water runoff, and salmon spawning habitat that will be destroyed. He doesn’t want 
this development in his community. The conversation continued with him expressing concerns about the 
road danger, school, and traffic impacts. He is in total opposition to the 240-home development on 
Woodard Rd.    
 

• Jerry Nixon Apex Mobile Mixed Concrete: Asked where the city attorney is and where has he been. Said 
that he hasn’t been at the last two meetings. The Clerk and Mayor have talked with the attorney and 
there will be regular representation at our meetings. Jerry stated that he sees a black Jeep here about 40 
hrs. week and it leaves before the meetings, the mayor stated that he knows who drives a vehicle similar 
and that is a regular employee.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



4 
 

 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
 
VOUCHERS- M. WHITTEN  

 

 
 

MOVED: Ivan Wiediger Motion: Approval of the Vouchers dated 
January 2024 1st Council Meeting-December 
2023 Open Period. 

SECONDED: Don Webster 

Discussion: No Discussion.  
VOTE ON MAIN MOTION: 5-0 Motion Carried; 5 aye and 0 nay. 

 

 

 

AM 24-01 LEAK ADJUSTMENT ACCT NO. 2765.0 – R. DENHAM 
 

MOVED: Ivan Wiediger Motion: Approve AM 24-01. SECONDED: Brian Watson 
Discussion: No Discussion 

VOTE ON MAIN MOTION: 5-0 Motion Carried; 5 aye and 0 nay. 
 

 

 

AM 24-02 LIQUOR LICENSE RENEWAL (PLAZA JALISCO) – R. DENHAM 
 

 MOVED: Ivan Wiediger Motion:   Approve AM 24-02 Liquor License 
Renewal SECONDED: Don Webster 

Discussion: No Discussion  
VOTE ON MAIN MOTION: 5-0 Motion Carried; 5 aye and 0 nay. 

 
 

 

 



5 
 

 

 

ADJOURNMENT:  

MOVED: Don Webster Motion: To Adjourn – Close of Meeting 
 SECONDED: Ivan Wiediger 

Discussion: Meeting Adjourned at 6:54 p.m. 
VOTE ON MAIN MOTION: 5-0 Motion Carried; 5 aye and 0 nay. 

 

These minutes are not verbatim.  If so desired, a recording of this meeting is available online from 
freeconferencecall.com or at the link  https://fccdl.in/YT3mfGS7Rk . 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
Rachelle Denham, City Clerk  Shawn O’Neill, Mayor      Councilor 

https://fccdl.in/YT3mfGS7Rk


Date

AWC

1/8/2024

Chehalis Outfitters 

1/11/2024

1/11/2024

1/11/2024

1/11/2024

1/11/2024

1/14/2024

Dept Labor & Industries

1/2/2024

Esco Pacific Signs, Inc.

12/27/2023

Evergreen Rural Water of WA

1/1/2024

Flannery Publications

12/23/2023

Goods Quarry

1/15/2024

Home Depot Credit Services

12/24/2023

Reference Number: 38758 $29.00

3513206 $29.00 bits

10581 $179.12 12.54 ton quarry spalls

Reference Number: 38757 $179.12

Reference Number: 38756 $45.50

62677 $45.50 Ord 638 2024 budget

48821 $441.00 2024 ERWOW Annual membership

Reference Number: 38755 $441.00

Reference Number: 38754 $1,102.85

32474 $1,102.85 6 fabric banners

370711 $89.70 LNI Boiler Vessel HW Heater2024

Reference Number: 38753 $89.70

037982 ($102.77) O Neill workwear/boots

37990 $205.57 Boot Allowance Morris B

037978 $421.92 Boot/Uniform Allowance Cagle

037980 $394.80 Uniform/boot allowance Hutchinson

037976 $374.23 Boot/Uniform Allowance Morris R

037977 $438.08 O'Neill Workwear/Boots

Reference Number: 38752 $1,731.83

Reference Number: 38751 $999.43

122771 $999.43 2024 AWC Retro Alliance Membership

                    Voucher Report Jan 23, 2024

                         January - January 2024 Second Council Meeting

Reference Amount Notes

Jan 23, 2024 Council Meeting  City of Napavine - Voucher Activity 1



Date

                         January - January 2024 Second Council Meeting

Reference Amount Notes

IACP- International Association of Police Chiefs

12/20/2023

Jackson Civil Engineering LLC

11/14/2023

1/9/2024

1/9/2024

1/9/2024

1/9/2024

Joseph O. Enbody

1/8/2024

LCSO-Corrections Bureau

12/31/2023

12/31/2023

Lemay Mobile Shredding

1/1/2024

Lewis County Fleet Svs.

1/8/2024

1/9/2024

Lewis County Public Health Department

12/29/2023

Lewis County PUD

12/31/2023

12/31/2023

12/31/2023

12/31/20232024*01 128578001 $44.78 11/21-12/22 Rush Rd lt

2024*01 104755026 $39.64 11/21-12/22 Koontz rd lt

2024*01 124227002 $576.68 11/21-12/22 Rush rd well 6

Reference Number: 38766 $729.48

2024*01 104755010 $33.14 11/21-12/22 Hamilton Rd Sewer

8362 $112.00 4 Test Bottles

Reference Number: 38765 $112.00

40705 $126.16 21 Dodge Durango oil change

40714 $1,559.70 02 Chev 3500 brake/alternator.ATF

Reference Number: 38764 $1,685.86

Reference Number: 38763 $65.00

4825064S 185 $65.00 12/1-12/31 2023 shred service

2023 Dec Medical $34.04 2023 Dec medical

Reference Number: 38762 $682.92

2023 Dec Jail $648.88 2023 -Dec   8# of beds days

2023*Dec Indigent Def $1,710.00

Reference Number: 38761 $1,710.00

0016-27-05 $2,905.00 Jefferson Station .09

0016-30-02 $4,247.50 Rush Rd/Woodard Rd/ General

0016-14-12 $157.50 Development Pass-Through Fees TA

0016-24-11 $706.67 Rush Rd TIB closeout

Reference Number: 38760 $9,091.12

0016-10-19 $1,074.45 Development Pass-Through Fees ARCO

0325386 $190.00 2024 dues

Reference Number: 38759 $190.00

Jan 23, 2024 Council Meeting  City of Napavine - Voucher Activity 2



Date

                         January - January 2024 Second Council Meeting

Reference Amount Notes

12/31/2023

Lewis County Sheriffs Office

12/31/2023

Lewis County Treasurer

12/31/2023

Mountain Mist

1/8/2024

1/8/2024

Providence Hospital/cent

1/5/2024

Quill Corporation

12/22/2023

12/31/2023

12/31/2023

1/4/2024

1/15/2024

Sarah Berry c/o Duane Elwood

1/3/2024

1/1/2024

Service Saw Workwears

1/11/2024

1/11/2024

State Auditor's Office

1/10/2024L158558 $9,671.55 Accountability/Financial Audit 2020-2022 Audit

Reference Number: 38774 $9,671.55

313080 $16.22 Hutchinson Uniform allowance

313081 $70.21 O'Neill Uniform allowance

Reference Number: 38773 $86.43

01/03/2024 Cedar Village Pharmacy $240.00 Meds reimbursement

2024*Jan Medical Ins $147.00 2024*Jan Medical Ins

Reference Number: 38772 $387.00

36479610 $53.50 batteries/memo book

36661977 $69.99 Saphire renewal 2024

36381915 $145.49 markers/pins/scissors

36383885 $40.98 desk calendars

Reference Number: 38771 $402.73

36316320 $92.77 envelopes/copy paper

13782607 Dec Collections blood $32.00 4 blood collections

Reference Number: 38770 $32.00

005781864 $31.50 5 gal water jugs

005781865 $18.01 5 gal water jugs

Reference Number: 38769 $49.51

Reference Number: 38768 $38.33

2023 Dec CV $38.33 2023 - Dec  Court Remittance

2023 Dec Evidence $400.00 2023- Dec Evidence Handling

Reference Number: 38767 $400.00

2024*01 128578002 $35.24 11/21-12/22  Hamilton Rd lt

Jan 23, 2024 Council Meeting  City of Napavine - Voucher Activity 3



Date

                         January - January 2024 Second Council Meeting

Reference Amount Notes

State Treasurer's Office

12/31/2023

Toledotel

1/1/2024

Traffic Safety Supply Co.

1/2/2024

US Bank Corp Payment Syst

12/18/2023

12/31/2023

12/29/2023

12/12/2023

1/6/2024

12/8/2023

12/29/2023

12/15/2023

12/24/2023

12/22/2023

12/22/2023

12/27/2023

12/30/2023

US Bank NA Cincinnati

1/1/2024

US Cellular

12/20/2023

Utilities Underground Location CenterReference Number: 38781 $5.16

0624583182 $55.74 2023- 12/20-1/19 Treasurer  US Cell Phone 

Reference Number: 38780 $55.74

Reference Number: 38779 $34.00

2023*Dec Bond Maint $34.00 2023 - Dec  Bond Fee

VP_TCRZNT4D Vista Print $83.61 Business Cards PD

951298923 US Cell Hutchinson $98.72 Hutchinson Cell Phone

INV233187560 ZOOM $17.03 Zoom 12/27-Jan 26

484600 Chehalis Outfitters $48.52 Safety Vests (5)

951298923 US Cell Cagle $180.69 Cagle Cell Phone

12/29 Apple - ON X $32.45 ON X maps

2023*Dec Free Conference Call $3.25 Free Conf Call

097298 Soft Touch $16.60 Car Wash Dawes

113-4440516-6132202 $173.70 Weed barrier fabric

008257 USPS $19.96 Court Postage

032764 Dollar General $11.33 Dog Food

00148 Soft Touch $16.60 Car Wash  Nichols

005325 Soft Touch $12.45 Car Wash -Chief

Reference Number: 38778 $714.91

Reference Number: 38777 $833.88

INV066282 $833.88 6 stop signs

100404346 $350.62 2024 Jan 1-31

Reference Number: 38776 $350.62

Reference Number: 38775 $1,801.63

2023*Dec Court remit $1,801.63 2023*Dec Court remit

Jan 23, 2024 Council Meeting  City of Napavine - Voucher Activity 4



Date

                         January - January 2024 Second Council Meeting

Reference Amount Notes

12/31/2023

Vision Municipal Solution

11/30/2023

12/31/2023

12/31/2023

12/31/2023

WA Dept of Transportation

12/31/2023

12/18/2023

WA Law Enformcement Information & Records Association

1/1/2024

Washington State Patrol

1/2/2024

Watersurplus / Surplus Management, Inc

1/9/2024

Winlock Auto Supply

1/2/2024

Zebra Computers

1/12/2024

Office of Support Enforcement

1/17/2024

Dept of Licensing Firearms Desk

1/11/2024NV0000080 Barnes $18.00 NV0000080 Barnes

Reference Number: EFT*20240102 $54.00

Reference Number: 38789 $203.00

Child Support - 15026 $203.00

22706 $72.77 PD software glitch

Reference Number: 38788 $72.77

Reference Number: 38787 $521.39

4847-373769 $521.39 PW Oil  for Vehicles

INV0005984 $7,401.34 Well #6 Water Treatment Plant carbon and gravel

Reference Number: 38786 $7,401.34

Reference Number: 38785 $13.25

I2403562 $13.25 CPL Background Checks Hamilton

3266 $50.00 2024 Membership renewal

Reference Number: 38784 $50.00

RE *FB91458006241 $2,769.65 2023 Dec Fuel

RE-313-ATB31218061 $187.88 2023 11/01-11/30 signal maintenance

Reference Number: 38783 $2,957.53

09-13991 $202.50 IT PW/server

09-14007 $57.09 O'Neill email set up

09-13875 $641.25 Failed Server replaced

09-13962 $853.95 2023*Dec utility billing

Reference Number: 38782 $1,754.79

3120195 $5.16 4 locates

Jan 23, 2024 Council Meeting  City of Napavine - Voucher Activity 5



Date

                         January - January 2024 Second Council Meeting

Reference Amount Notes

1/11/2024

1/11/2024

DE Lage Landen Financial Services

1/6/2024

Invoice Cloud Inc

12/31/2023

Centurylink

12/31/2023

WAVE

12/17/2023

WAVE

12/24/2023

WAVE

12/17/2023

Dept of Retirement Systems

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024Emp Rtmt - 15026 $270.91

Emp Rtmt - 15024 $347.14

Emp Rtmt - 15025 $219.08

Emp Rtmt - 15021 $167.02

Emp Rtmt - 15022 $340.34

Emp Rtmt - 15019 $169.81

Emp Rtmt - 15020 $283.65

Emp Rtmt - 15017 $249.09

Emp Rtmt - 15018 $199.30

Reference Number: EFT*20240109 $8,266.48

Emp Rtmt - 15016 $277.58

032776101-0010548 $125.07 2023-12/19-1/18  WAVE Phone

Reference Number: EFT*20240108 $125.07

Reference Number: EFT*20240107 $94.47

I032768701-0010560 $94.47 2023- 12/23-1/22 WAVE Phone & Internet

104979801-0010548 $145.17 2023 12/19-1/18  WAVE Internet

Reference Number: EFT*20240106 $145.17

Reference Number: EFT*20240105 $56.37

206-T21-6528 954 2023 Dec $56.37 2023 -Dec20-Jan 20  Well Telemetry 206T21

3636-2023_12 $187.00 2023*Dec Invoice Cloud

Reference Number: EFT*20240104 $187.00

Reference Number: EFT*20240103 $464.00

81755467 $464.00 2024 - 1/1-1/31  Sharp MX3071

NV0000082 Whitehead $18.00 NV0000082 Whitehead

NV0000081 Smith $18.00 NV0000081 Smith

Jan 23, 2024 Council Meeting  City of Napavine - Voucher Activity 6



Date

                         January - January 2024 Second Council Meeting

Reference Amount Notes

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

Dept of Treasury Internal Revenue Service

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024Federal Income Tax - 15021 $399.27

Federal Income Tax - 15019 $398.17

Federal Income Tax - 15020 $238.35

Federal Income Tax - 15017 $675.12

Federal Income Tax - 15018 $552.00

Reference Number: EFT*20240110 $7,533.36

Federal Income Tax - 15016 $179.22

Taxable Retirement  - 15034 $170.09

Taxable Retirement  - 15032 $148.82

Taxable Retirement  - 15033 $195.73

Taxable Retirement  - 15030 $182.38

Taxable Retirement  - 15031 $287.45

Taxable Retirement  - 15027 $181.75

Taxable Retirement  - 15029 $237.86

Taxable Retirement  - 15025 $146.20

Taxable Retirement  - 15026 $180.79

Taxable Retirement  - 15022 $227.13

Taxable Retirement  - 15024 $254.98

Taxable Retirement  - 15020 $189.30

Taxable Retirement  - 15021 $267.79

Taxable Retirement  - 15018 $319.55

Taxable Retirement  - 15019 $272.28

Taxable Retirement  - 15016 $185.25

Taxable Retirement  - 15017 $399.39

Emp Rtmt - 15033 $293.28

Emp Rtmt - 15034 $254.86

Emp Rtmt - 15031 $430.72

Emp Rtmt - 15032 $222.99

Emp Rtmt - 15029 $148.35

Emp Rtmt - 15030 $273.29

Emp Rtmt - 15027 $272.33

Jan 23, 2024 Council Meeting  City of Napavine - Voucher Activity 7



Date

                         January - January 2024 Second Council Meeting

Reference Amount Notes

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024Medicare - 15027 $41.44

Medicare - 15026 $41.22

Medicare - 15026 (2) $41.22

Medicare - 15025 $33.33

Medicare - 15025 (2) $33.33

Medicare - 15024 $52.82

Medicare - 15024 (2) $52.82

Medicare - 15022 $51.78

Medicare - 15022 (2) $51.78

Medicare - 15021 $45.70

Medicare - 15021 (2) $45.70

Medicare - 15020 $43.16

Medicare - 15020 (2) $43.16

Medicare - 15019 $46.36

Medicare - 15019 (2) $46.36

Medicare - 15018 $55.04

Medicare - 15018 (2) $55.04

Medicare - 15017 $68.40

Medicare - 15017 (2) $68.40

Medicare - 15016 $42.23

Medicare - 15016 (2) $42.23

Federal Income Tax - 15033 $252.63

Federal Income Tax - 15034 $310.69

Federal Income Tax - 15031 $678.16

Federal Income Tax - 15032 $155.96

Federal Income Tax - 15029 $219.85

Federal Income Tax - 15030 $347.73

Federal Income Tax - 15026 $309.23

Federal Income Tax - 15027 $169.14

Federal Income Tax - 15024 $474.22

Federal Income Tax - 15025 $212.20

Federal Income Tax - 15022 $388.46

Jan 23, 2024 Council Meeting  City of Napavine - Voucher Activity 8



Date

                         January - January 2024 Second Council Meeting

Reference Amount Notes

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

Payroll Vendor

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024

1/17/2024ACH Pay - 15034 $1,984.61

ACH Pay - 15032 $1,737.62

ACH Pay - 15033 $2,107.54

ACH Pay - 15030 $2,118.80

ACH Pay - 15031 $3,024.90

ACH Pay - 15027 $2,138.54

ACH Pay - 15029 $2,069.85

ACH Pay - 15025 $1,644.87

ACH Pay - 15026 $1,772.33

ACH Pay - 15022 $2,479.74

ACH Pay - 15024 $2,462.66

ACH Pay - 15020 $2,260.54

ACH Pay - 15021 $2,181.51

ACH Pay - 15018 $2,646.77

ACH Pay - 15019 $2,174.89

ACH Pay - 15016 $2,010.22

ACH Pay - 15017 $3,171.46

Reference Number: Jan 1-15, 2024 $37,986.85

Medicare - 15034 $38.78

Medicare - 15034 (2) $38.78

Medicare - 15033 $44.62

Medicare - 15033 (2) $44.62

Medicare - 15032 $33.93

Medicare - 15032 (2) $33.93

Medicare - 15031 $65.53

Medicare - 15031 (2) $65.53

Medicare - 15030 $41.58

Medicare - 15030 (2) $41.58

Medicare - 15029 $40.56

Medicare - 15029 (2) $40.56

Medicare - 15027 (2) $41.44

Jan 23, 2024 Council Meeting  City of Napavine - Voucher Activity 9



Date

                         January - January 2024 Second Council Meeting

Reference Amount Notes

Total 

WE, THE FOLLOWING SIGNEES, APPROVE THE VOUCHERS FOR PAYMENT:

Accounts Payable 76 38 46,519.37         38751-38788

Payroll Vendors 1 1 203.00               38789

Electronic Payments 7 7 1,126.08            EFT*20240101-08

Electronic Payroll 2 2 15,799.84         EFT*20240109-10

1/20/2023 ACH Direct Deposit 17 17 37,986.85         Direct Deposit 01/19/2024

Total Vouchers 103 65 101,635.14       

VOID Check 38720 & reissued

MAYOR: __________________________________________________________

TREASURER: _________________________________________________

COUNCILOR #1: ___________________________________________________

COUNCILOR #2: ___________________________________________________

COUNCILOR #3: ___________________________________________________

COUNCILOR #4: ___________________________________________________

COUNCILOR #5: ___________________________________________________

Police Department - John Brockmueller_____________________________

Public Works/Community Development - Bryan Morris ________________

Court- Lacie Dewitt _______________________________________________

City Clerk - Rachelle Denham:_____________________________________

DATED THIS     DAY OF             ,2024

$101,635.14

Jan 23, 2024 Council Meeting  City of Napavine - Voucher Activity 10



 

 

 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 
 

(ILA) 
 
 

  
for  

 
 

LEWIS COUNTY COMMUNICATIONS  
 

OPERATION, MAINTENANCE AND PARTICIPATION  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The ILA outlines a comprehensive management plan   

based on goals and strategic planning 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Effective Date of Agreement: 

 

January 1, 2024 – June 30, 2024  



 

Y:\911 Administration\Interlocal Agreement\Final ILA 1-26-18.docx Page # ii 

 

Distribution List 
 

Plan Agency Staff Title 

Lewis County BOCC Commissioner Chair 

Lewis County Sheriff’s Office Sheriff 

Lewis County Coroner’s Office Coroner 

Centralia, City of Centralia City Manager 

Centralia Police Department Centralia Police Department Chief 

Chehalis, City of Chehalis City Manager 

Chehalis Police Department Chehalis Police Department Chief 

Chehalis Fire Department Chehalis Fire Chief 

Napavine, City of  Napavine Mayor 

Napavine Police Department Napavine Police Department Chief 

Pe Ell, Town of Pe Ell Mayor 

Pe Ell Marshal’s Office Pe Ell Marshal 

Winlock, City of Winlock Mayor 

Winlock Police Department Winlock Police Department Chief 

Vader, City of Vader Mayor 

Vader Police Department Vader Police Department Chief 

Toledo, City of Toledo Mayor 

Mossyrock, City of Mossyrock Mayor 

Mossyrock Police Department Mossyrock Police Department Chief 

Morton, City of Morton Mayor 

Morton Police Department Morton Police Department Chief 

LCFD # 1 - Onalaska LCFD # 1 – Onalaska, Commissioner 

LCFD # 1 - Onalaska LCFD # 1 – Onalaska, Chief 

LCFD # 2 – Toledo LCFD # 2 – Toledo, Commissioner 

LCFD # 2 – Toledo LCFD # 2 – Toledo, Chief 

LCFD # 3 – Mossyrock LCFD # 3 – Mossyrock, Commissioner 

LCFD # 3 – Mossyrock LCFD # 3 – Mossyrock, Chief 

LCFD # 4 – Morton LCFD # 4 – Morton, Commissioner 

LCFD # 4 – Morton LCFD # 4 – Morton, Chief 

LCFD # 5 – Napavine LCFD # 5 – Napavine, Commissioner 

LCFD # 5 – Napavine LCFD # 5 – Napavine, Chief 

LCFD # 6 – Chehalis LCFD # 6 – Chehalis, Commissioner 

LCFD # 6 – Chehalis LCFD # 6 – Chehalis, Chief 

LCFD # 8 – Salkum LCFD # 8 – Salkum, Commissioner 

LCFD # 8 – Salkum LCFD # 8 – Salkum, Chief 

LCFD # 9 – Mineral LCFD # 9 – Mineral, Commissioner 

LCFD # 9 – Mineral LCFD # 9 – Mineral, Chief 

LCFD # 10 – Packwood LCFD # 10 – Packwood, Commissioner 

LCFD # 10 – Packwood LCFD # 10 – Packwood, Chief 

LCFD # 11 – Pe Ell LCFD # 11 – Pe Ell, Commissioner 



 

Y:\911 Administration\Interlocal Agreement\Final ILA 1-26-18.docx Page # iii 

 

Plan Agency Staff Title 

LCFD # 11 – Pe Ell LCFD # 11 – Pe Ell, Chief 

LCFD # 13 – Curtis LCFD # 13 – Curtis, Commissioner 

LCFD # 13 – Curtis LCFD # 13 – Curtis, Chief 

LCFD # 14 – Randle LCFD # 14 – Randle, Commissioner 

LCFD # 14 – Randle LCFD # 14 – Randle, Chief 

LCFD # 15 – Winlock LCFD # 15 – Winlock, Commissioner 

LCFD # 15 – Winlock LCFD # 15 – Winlock, Chief 

LCFD # 16 – Doty LCFD # 16 – Doty, Commissioner 

LCFD # 16 – Doty LCFD # 16 – Doty, Chief 

LCFD # 17 – Ashford LCFD # 17 – Ashford, Commissioner 

LCFD # 17 – Ashford LCFD # 17 – Ashford, Chief 

LCFD # 18 – Glenoma LCFD # 18 – Glenoma, Commissioner 

LCFD # 18 – Glenoma LCFD # 18 – Glenoma, Chief 

Cowlitz-Lewis Fire District 20 Vader Cowlitz-Lewis Fire District 20 Vader, Commissioner 

Cowlitz-Lewis Fire District 20 Vader Cowlitz-Lewis Fire District 20 Vader, Chief 

Riverside Fire Authority Riverside Fire Authority, Commissioner 

Riverside Fire Authority Riverside Fire Authority, Chief 

American Medical Response (AMR) American Medical Response (AMR), Director 

Medic One (South County EMS) Medic One (South County EMS), Director 

Lewis County Public Works Lewis County Public Works, Director 

Lewis County Radio Services Lewis County Radio Services, Manager 

 

 

  



 

Y:\911 Administration\Interlocal Agreement\Final ILA 1-26-18.docx Page # iv 

 

Executive Summary 
 

Over the last 40 years, the Lewis County public safety service – including law enforcement, fire service, 

emergency medical services and dispatch – has undergone several evolutionary changes. As our 

community has grown, so have the demands, challenges, and expectations for public safety services 

across all disciplines.  

 

This interlocal agreement (ILA) between the Lewis County 911 Communications Center and the response 

community reflects positive change.  It’s about a stated public service mission, partnerships, an effective 

process, and teamwork. It is also about defining where we have been in the past, where we are today and 

where we need to be in the future. It’s a starting point to work together to meet future challenges and 

discover innovative ways to deliver efficient, effective, safe, and affordable public safety service to our 

community. 

 

Prior to the early 1980s, most response agencies did their own dispatching. With growing demands and 

complexity of receiving/dispatching calls for service, there was a big push to consolidate the county and 

city law enforcement and a few of the fire districts. They joined together to create a single “Public Safety 

Access Point” now referred to as a “PSAP.”  

 

By the mid-1980s, all the fire districts were successfully joined with the law enforcement agencies into 

the current PSAP partnership.  An interlocal agreement among the partners was developed to help guide 

and define the delivery of services, establish the costs, and adopt a fee formula for the PSAP operation. 

  
  



 

Y:\911 Administration\Interlocal Agreement\Final ILA 1-26-18.docx Page # v 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

 Distribution List   ........................................................................................................   ii-iii   

 Executive Summary   .....................................................................................................   iv   

 Table of Contents   ....................................................................................................   v-viii   

 

I. Purpose  ............................................................................................................................  1   

II. Scope  ................................................................................................................................  1   

III.  Concept of Operations   ...............................................................................................   1-3   

 

IV. Identification of Partners of this Agreement   ...........................................................   3-4   

 (A)  Lewis County Board of County Commissioners   ......................................................  3   

 (B)  City Representation & Sheriff’s Office (Law Group)   ..............................................  3   

 (C)  Fire Services Group (Fire Districts & Municipal Fire Departments)   ...................   3-4   

 (D)  Emergency Medical Services Group   ........................................................................  4   

 (E)  Other Partner Agencies Group (non-voting User Group)   .........................................  4   

 

V. Administrative Structure   ..........................................................................................   4-6   

 (A)  Lewis County BOCC   ............................................................................................   4-5   

 (B)  911 Director   ..............................................................................................................  5   

 (C)  Lewis County Communications Center (LCCC)   ......................................................  5   

 (D)  Combined User Committee  .......................................................................................  5   

 (E)  Partner Agencies   .......................................................................................................  5   

  Consolidated Communications Administration Flowchart   .................................  6   

 

VI. Responsibilities   .........................................................................................................   7-13   

 (A)  Lewis County BOCC   ................................................................................................  7   

 (B)  911 Director   ..........................................................................................................   7-8   

 (C)  Intentionally Omitted   ................................................................................................  9   

 (D)  Lewis County Communications Center – General Services   ...............................   9-10   

 (E)  Combined User Committee  ...............................................................................   10-12   

   a)  Law Enforcement Management Team   .........................................................   11-12   

   b)  Fire Services Management Team   ......................................................................  12   

 (F)  Partner Agencies   ...............................................................................................   12-13   

 (G)  Equipment   ...............................................................................................................  13   

   1.  Mobile-Portable Agency Specific Equipment   ..................................................  13   

   2.  Exclusive Partner Agency Equipment   ..............................................................  13   

   3.  County Equipment   ............................................................................................  13   

 

VII. Combined User Committee   ...................................................................................   13-15   

 (A)  Membership   ............................................................................................................  14   

 (B)  Chair, Vice Chair   ....................................................................................................  14   

 (C)  Agenda and Notices   ................................................................................................  14   



 

Y:\911 Administration\Interlocal Agreement\Final ILA 1-26-18.docx Page # vi 

 

 (D)  Meetings   ..................................................................................................................  14   

 (E)  Voting   ..................................................................................................................  14   

   A.  Voting Members   .........................................................................................   14-15   

    1.  Law Enforcement Management Team   .........................................................  14   

    2.  Fire Services Management Team  ...........................................................   14-15   

   B.  Non-voting Members  .........................................................................................  15   

   C.  Electronic Voting   ..............................................................................................  15   

   D.  List of Voting Members   ....................................................................................  15   

   E.  Tie Votes   ...........................................................................................................  15   

 

 

VIII. Financing the LCCC & Communications Infrastructure   ..................................   15-19   

 (A)  Program Costs   ...................................................................................................   15-16   

  Communications Program Full Strategic Planning Cost-Sharing Timetable  ..  17   

 (B)  General LCCC Costs  .........................................................................................   17-19   

   1.  Maintenance & Operation Costs of the LCCC   ...........................................   17-18   

    a.  Operating Costs   ...........................................................................................  17   

    b.  Administrative Costs   ...................................................................................  18   

   2.  Maintenance & Support for Infrastructure   ........................................................  18   

   3.  Equipment Repair & Replacement for LCCC Equipment   ..........................   18-19   

   4.  Equipment Repair & Replacement for Infrastructure Equipment   ....................  19   

   5.  Building and Equipment Fund   ..........................................................................  19   

   6.  Fund Balance   ....................................................................................................  19   

 

IX. Establishing an Annual Budget   ............................................................................   20-21   

 (A)  Annual Budget Preparation   .....................................................................................  20   

   1.  Budget Committee   ............................................................................................  20   

   2.  “Draft” LCCC Operating Budget  ......................................................................  20   

   3.  “Preliminary” Budget  ........................................................................................  20   

   4.  Combined User Committee Review   .................................................................  20   

   5.  Adjustments to the Combined User Agency Funding Formula   ........................  20   

 (B)  Revenue   ............................................................................................................   20-21   

 (C)  Expenses   .................................................................................................................  21   

 (D)  Division of Costs  .....................................................................................................  21   

 (E)  Biannual Budget  ......................................................................................................  21   

 

X. County Budget Process   ..........................................................................................   21-22   

 (A)  User Request   .....................................................................................................   21-22   

 (B)  Budget Submission   .................................................................................................  22   

 (C)  County Adoption   .....................................................................................................  22   

 (D)  Budget Changes   ......................................................................................................  22   

 (E)  Changes to Preliminary User Fees   ..........................................................................  22   

 

XI. Billing Partner Agencies   ........................................................................................   22-23   

 



 

Y:\911 Administration\Interlocal Agreement\Final ILA 1-26-18.docx Page # vii 

 

XII. Partner Agency Withdrawals – Procedures   ........................................................   23-24   

 (A) Withdrawal of a Partner Agency Other Than the County  ........................................  23   

  1. Required Notice to Withdraw From Agreement   ................................................  23   

  2. Partner Agency Rights after Notice of Intent to Withdraw   ...............................  24   

 (B) Termination of Partner Agency   ...............................................................................  24   

  1. Failure to Remit Fees or Repeated Policy Violations   ........................................  24   

   a. 911 Director   .................................................................................................  24   

   b. Combined User Committee  ..........................................................................  24   

   c. Lewis County BOCC   ...................................................................................  24   

  2. Obligations and Rights upon Termination   .........................................................  24   

 

XIII. Dissolution of LCCC & ILA   .......................................................................................  25   

 1.  County Withdrawal from Agreement   .......................................................................  25   

 

XIV. Confidentiality   ..............................................................................................................  25   

 

XV. Mediation and/or Arbitration   .....................................................................................  25   

 

XVI. Indemnification   ............................................................................................................  26   

 

XVII. Liability Coverage   ......................................................................................................... 26   

 

XVIII. Notice   .............................................................................................................................  26   

 

XIX. Severability   .................................................................................................................  26   

 

XX. Termination of Other Communication Agreements   ................................................  27   

 

XXI. Duration of Agreement   ................................................................................................  27   

 

XXII. Alterations and Amendments   .....................................................................................  27   

 

XXIII. Ownership of Facilities   ................................................................................................  27   

 

XXIV. Filing of Agreement   .....................................................................................................  27   

 

XXV. Execution of Counterparts   ..........................................................................................  27   

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Approvals and Concurrences   ...................................................................................   28-29   

Attachment A – Communications Fee Distribution  .......................................................  30   

Attachment B – Annual Budget Report 2012 – 2018   ....................................................  31   

Attachment C – Funding Formula   ...........................................................................   32-33   

Attachment D – Equipment Amortization Schedule   .....................................................  34   

 



 

Y:\911 Administration\Interlocal Agreement\Final ILA 1-26-18.docx Page # viii 

 

Attachment E – Forms   .............................................................................................   35-42   

 Incident Inquiry Form   ..............................................................................................  36   

 Formal Complaint Form   ..........................................................................................  37   

 Flowchart – Incident Inquiry & Formal Complaint Flowcharts   ......................  38     

 

Outstanding Performance Recognition – Form   .......................................................   39-40   

Lewis County Communications Center Annual Performance Appraisal Form  .............  41   

 

Attachment F – Communications User Group Meeting Agenda Draft   .........................  42   

Attachment G – Intentionally Omitted   ..........................................................................  43   

 

Attachment H – Acronyms and Definitions  .............................................................   44-46   

Attachment I – Lewis County Radio Sites   ...............................................................   47-48   



 

Y:\911 Administration\Interlocal Agreement\ Final ILA 1-26-18.docx Page # 1 

 
 

 
I. Purpose  
 
To define a general scope of services, develop a concept of operations, identify partner 
agencies to include their duties, roles, responsibilities, and authorities, and outline the 
financial and budget process. The ILA also provides for participation in updates and 
changes along with laying the groundwork for the development of a strategic plan that 
addresses operations, infrastructure, and monetary issues in the future.  
 

II. Scope 
 
Partner agencies acknowledge it is essential to work together regularly and encourage 
a spirt of open communications in an effort to develop a service product--and costs 
thereof--that take into consideration the greater good, the needs of all partner agencies, 
and the financial limitations of the group as a whole. 
 
Based on past practices, this contract outlines the Lewis County Communications 
Center (LCCC) and Infrastructure partnerships, management structure, user committee 
roles and responsibilities, and budget and formulas for establishing user fees.  
 
As previous contracts for services only addressed costs for the annual LCCC operating 
budget, it is the goal of this service contract to develop a plan for sharing expenses for 
establishing an Equipment Repair & Replacement (ER&R) fund to guide savings for 
replacement of the Communications Center and infrastructure equipment as it ages. It is 
also desirable to reach an agreement to provide for maintenance and support of the 
external infrastructure that is not currently shared by the user fees.  It is also desirable 
to establish a building and equipment account to secure funds for a new 
Communications Center facility.   See Section VIII.  Financing the LCCC and 
Communications Infrastructure.    
 

III. Concept of Operations 
 
In order to accomplish these purposes, it is the intent of this agreement to provide for 
the following: 
 
1. The general responsibility for the ownership, operation, maintenance, repair, 

replacement, training, and financial management of the Lewis County 
Communications Center (LCCC) shall be vested with the Lewis County Board of 
County Commissioners (BOCC).  It is an existing governmental structure 
encompassing the entire geographic, economic, and population region to be served 
and has established a Communications Center with the capability of providing 
consolidated communication services to the parties.   

 
2. The LCCC shall be positioned within county government and administered by a 911 

Director appointed by the BOCC.  The LCCC’s duties and responsibilities of the 



 

 Page # 2 

 

Director shall be as provided herein (see page 4).  The 911 Director shall be an 
employee of the County and subject to all of the personnel rules of the County. 

 

3. Intentionally Omitted. 
 

4. There shall be established, as hereinafter provided, one “Combined User 
Committee” made up of one (1) representative from each partner agency, including 
but not limited to fire districts, law enforcement (cities), Emergency Medical Services 
(EMS), and other providers which use dispatching services of the LCCC.  The 
duties, responsibilities, and membership shall be as provided herein. 

 

5. The Combined User Committee shall meet at least quarterly to review operational 
issues/procedures and make recommendations (in the manner provided herein) to 
the 911 Director.  

 

6. The basic scope of LCCC services shall be identified and provided herein.  
 

7. Contributions to the cost and expense of the operation, maintenance, repair, and 
replacement, and all other related costs and expenses of the LCCC, shall be divided 
and paid for by each of the partners hereto in the amounts and in the manner 
provided herein. The annual LCCC budget shall be prepared, approved, and 
followed as provided in this agreement. 

 

8. The ILA is the governing document that is directly tied to the LCCC Policy, 
Procedure and Operations Manual, see XII – B 1. Failure to Remit Fees or Repeated 
Policy Violations, page 31. 

 

9. Parties to this agreement are expected to participate, provide input, and adhere to 
the LCC Policy, Procedure and Operations Manual.  All users should have a basic 
understanding of sections 000-600 and follow the provisions specific to their 
discipline. The LCC Policy, Procedure and Operations Manual includes the 
following: 

 
000-100  General Operations  
101-200  Phone Systems Operations 
201-300  Radio Systems Operations 
301-400  ACCESS Operations 
401-500  SPILLMAN Operations 
501-600  LC 911 Personnel Operations 

*601-700  Law Enforcement Operations 
*701-800  Fire District Operations 
*801-900  EMS Operations 

 
 *These manuals are the currently approved procedures submitted by the discipline work groups. 

 
10. Withdrawal from this agreement and from participation in the LCCC by a partner 

hereto shall only be as provided in this agreement. 
 



 

 Page # 3 

 

11. Termination from this agreement by a partner hereto shall only be as provided in this 
agreement. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth 
and in consideration of the obligations of the other partners here, each of the partners 
hereto promises and agrees as follows: 
 

 
IV. Identification of Partners of this Agreement 

 
(A) Lewis County Board of County Commissioners  
 
 The Lewis County Board of County Commissioners (BOCC) is acknowledged 

as the primary partner of this agreement because it owns, operates, manages, 
and houses the LCCC.  The BOCC is also a recipient of dispatch and 
communications services of the LCCC through the Division of Emergency 
Management and Public Works Department. 

 

(B) City Representation & Sheriff’s Office (Law Group) 
 

 The following cities and the Lewis County Sheriff’s Office are acknowledged as 
partners to this agreement because they are the recipients of dispatch and 
communications services through their respective police departments.  This 
group is herein referred to as the “Law Group”: 

 

• Lewis County Sheriff’s Office 

• Centralia 

• Chehalis 

• Napavine 

• Pe Ell 

• Winlock 

• Vader 

• Toledo 

• Mossyrock 

• Morton 
 

(C) Fire Services Group (Fire Districts & Municipal Fire Departments) 
 

 The following fire services agencies are partners to this agreement because 
they are the recipients of dispatch and communications services in connection 
with fire services.  This group is herein referred to as the “Fire Services Group”: 

 

• Lewis County Fire District 1-Onalaska 

• Lewis County Fire District 2-Toledo 

• Lewis County Fire District 3-Mossyrock 

• Lewis County Fire District 4-Morton  

• Lewis County Fire District 5-Napavine 



 

 Page # 4 

 

• Lewis County Fire District 6-Chehalis  

• Lewis County Fire District 8-Salkum 

• Lewis County Fire District 9-Mineral 

• Lewis County Fire District 10-Packwood 

• Lewis County Fire District 11-Pe Ell 

• Lewis County Fire District 13-Curtis 

• Lewis County Fire District 14-Randle 

• Lewis County Fire District 15-Winlock 

• Lewis County Fire District 16-Doty 

• Lewis County Fire District 17-Ashford 

• Lewis County Fire District 18-Glenoma 

• Cowlitz-Lewis Fire District 20 (Vader) 

• Riverside Fire Authority 

• Chehalis Fire Department 
 

(D) Emergency Medical Services Group 
 

 The following Emergency Medical Services (EMS) are acknowledged as 
partners to this agreement because they are the recipients of dispatch and 
communications services.  This group is herein referred to as the “EMS” Group: 

 

• American Medical Response (AMR) 

• Medic One  
 
(E) Other Partner Agencies Group (Non-voting User Group) 
 
 Other governmental agencies that provide emergency services and require 

dispatch and communications services, as well as privately owned and 
operated emergency service providers that desire dispatch and 
communications services, may be permitted to become non-voting partners to 
this agreement upon such terms and conditions as shall be prescribed by the 
Combined User Committee and the 911 Director (see page 1). These agencies 
currently include the following: 

 

• Lewis County Division of Emergency Management 

• Lewis County Coroner’s Office 

• Lewis County Public Works 
 

V. ADMINISTRATIVE STRUCTURE 
 

 (A) Lewis County BOCC 
 

  The Lewis County Board of County Commissioners (BOCC) is acknowledged 
as the primary partner of this agreement because it owns, operates, manages, 
and houses the LCCC. Staff personnel carrying out the provisions of this 
agreement are also employees of the BOCC.   

 



 

 Page # 5 

 

 (B) 911 Director 
 

  The 911 Director is appointed by the BOCC and reports directly to the BOCC.  
The 911 Director develops program direction and oversees three divisions, 
including Communications and the Lewis County Communications Center.  The 
Director supports the Combined User Committee and oversees the budget, 
policy, and procedures for operations.  

 
 

 (C) Lewis County Communications Center (LCCC) 
 

The Lewis County Communications Center is a consolidated communications 
system providing agreed upon communications services to Lewis County, the 
cities (law), fire protection districts, and EMS partners.  

 

 (D) Combined User Committee 
 

The Combined User Committee membership consists of one (1) representative 
from each partner agency receiving agreed upon communications services.  
The Combined User Committee meets regularly to review LCCC operations 
and make recommendations for improvements and budgets.   

 

 (E) Partner Agencies  
 

Partner Agencies are all Lewis County agencies receiving LCCC 
communications services.  



 

Y:\911 Administration\Interlocal Agreement\ Final ILA 1-26-18.docx Page # 6 

 
 

Consolidated Communications Administration Flowchart  
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Operations Group 

 
911 Operations Group 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

BOCC 

 

911 DIRECTOR 

 
Administrative 

Assistant 

 
Radio Services 
Administrator 

Combined User 
Committee 

(Representatives) 

Partner Agency 
Executive Level 

Law

 

 Law 

Fire

 

 Law 

EMS 

Public Works 

Coroner 

DEM 

Operations Chief 

Supervisors 

Telecommunications 
Officers 



 

Y:\911 Administration\Interlocal Agreement\ Final ILA 1-26-18.docx Page # 7 

 
 

VI. RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

(A) Lewis County BOCC 
 

It is agreed that Lewis County shall provide administrative and contract services 
to the LCCC as required.  Such services include, but are not necessarily limited 
to: 

 

• Facility space to house the LCCC 

• Personnel/employee services 

• Maintenance of the facility and systems 

• Legal services 

• Networking services  

• Risk Management 

• Human Resources 

• Financial services 

• Contract services 
 

It is also the intent of the parties that the cost of such services shall be included 
in the LCCC annual budget. 

 

 (B) 911 Director 
 

1. Development and oversight of the Combined User Committee “structure” of 
the LCCC. 

 
2.  Implementing the mission, goals, and budget. 
 
3.  Monitoring of revenues and expenses as they relate to the approved annual 

budget. 
 
4. Contracting with persons, firms, and corporations, or any agencies of 

government, as necessary or desirable to acquire goods or services for the 
operation of the LCCC, provided that all procurements shall conform to 
Lewis County’s purchasing policies. 

 
5. Negotiating collective bargaining agreements with representatives of any 

certified bargaining representative of the employees of the LCCC. 
 
6. Receiving recommendations from the Combined User Committee and 

authorizes implementation, makes modifications, or denials such 
recommendations as appropriate.  All responses to Combined User 
Committee recommendations shall be in writing. 

 
7. Mediating disputes between the LCCC and any party to this agreement. 



 

 Page # 8 

 

 
8. Reviewing and evaluating any proposals from the Combined User 

Committee for changes to service levels, performance standards, and/or 
procedures for implementation costs, benefits, and liabilities, or other 
matters, and preparing a written report of findings.  

9. Responsible for the daily operation of the LCCC. 
 

10. Prepares regular reports regarding activities and the financial status of the 
LCCC. 

 
11. Acts as the administrative head of the LCCC and is responsible for 

administration, budget, and personnel matters. 
 
12. Responsible for call answering, dispatching, records, communications, 

security, and other LCCC functions and activities. 
 
13. Complies with personnel policies of Lewis County. 
 
14. Provides advice and assistance to the Combined User Committee when 

requested and as necessary. 
 
15. Assures that secretarial services are provided, as needed, to the Combined 

User Committee.  Such services shall include:  recording and transcribing 
minutes of meetings; preparing correspondence as required; preparing and 
distributing notices of meetings; and preparing agendas.  

 
16. Prepares the draft budget of the LCCC in accordance with Lewis County 

budget timetables.  Such budget shall be in a form required by Lewis 
County and shall be based upon the established service levels by the 
Combined User Committee and the 911 Director. 

 
17. Responsible for the hiring, promoting, disciplining, and termination of all 

LCCC personnel, subject to personnel policies of Lewis County. 
 

18. Collective bargaining with representatives of any certified bargaining 
representative of the employees of the LCCC.   

 
19. Prepares, revises, and modifies policies and Standard Operating 

Procedures (SOPs), as recommended by the Combined User Committee. 
 
20. Establishes policies consistent with expenditure of budgeted items for the 

LCCC.   
 
21. Develops appropriate long-range plans, including strategic building and 

equipment improvements, staffing, and other matters. 
 



 

 Page # 9 

 

22. Tracks and maintains data, including but not limited to, calls for service, 
population, and agency contributions in accordance with the cost sharing 
formula in Attachment A - Funding Formula. 

 
23.  Prepares an annual report and forwards it to the Combined User 

Committee. 
 
 

 (C) Intentionally Omitted 
 

 

(D) Lewis County Communications Center – General Services 
 

The LCCC agrees to perform the following general services for partner 
agencies: 

 
1. Maintaining twenty four (24) hour coverage for answering phone circuits 

terminating at the LCCC and of radio requests incoming on the frequencies 
agreed upon and properly licensed. 

 

2. Determining the nature of each incident and dispatching proper response in 
accordance with operational procedures.  

 

3. Developing and/or modifying operational procedures to effectively and 
efficiently meet service requests.  

 

4. Tracking status of active partner agency units and providing response to 
radio and telephone requests with respect to each incident.  

 

5. Providing a log of incoming calls with verification of time receipt, dispatch, 
arrival, unit status updates and pertinent information transmitted by field 
units to provide a means to verify the events and time span involved with 
each incident.  

 

6. Responding to Public Disclosure Requests (PDR) to partner agencies in 
compliance with PDR laws.  

 

7. Providing an interface between partner agency units, fire services, 
emergency services, public services departments, and law enforcement 
agencies.  

 

8. Maintaining and updating the operations policies, procedures, and tasks to 
help ensure continuity of operations.  

 

9. Providing for the LCCC equipment maintenance, repairs, and replacement 
to include phone system, radios, computers, and other dispatch related 
equipment.  

 

10.  Assisting in contacting and summoning private sector aid where needed.  



 

 Page # 10 

 

 

11. Receive and process incident inquires and formal service/personnel 
complaints (see Attachment E - Forms).  

 

12. Retain all records (per current retention laws) relevant to this contract after 
incidents have been dispatched. The partner agencies shall have full access 
and right to examine any record for verification of accuracy of this 
agreement at all times during said period.  

 

 
Note: When there are proposed changes to any Lewis County Communications 
Center General Services provision, the Partner Agencies shall be notified in 
writing of such proposed changes. For specific operational procedures 
associated with all services, please see the appropriate 911 operations manual.  

 

 
(E) Combined User Committee 

 
1. Regularly attend meetings to discuss current issues, make 

recommendations to the 911 Director on procedures, operations, and 
financial issues, and to act upon the recommendations of any special 
committees they so designate.   

 
2. Inform their agencies (other staff members) of the matters at hand and 

recommendations by the Combined User Committee.   

 
3. When there is not a unanimous approval for a change, it shall be the 

responsibility of the representatives’ discipline to take that matter up with 
other members of the discipline to achieve a consensus or majority approval 
to make the change before it is brought back to the Combined User 
Committee for reconsideration.   

 
4. Make recommendations in the development of telephone answering and 

dispatch protocol, procedures, policies, and systems related to service 
delivery. 

 
5. Make recommendations relative to dispatcher-staffing levels within the 

agreed upon budget constraints. 

 
6. Make recommendations relative to service levels.  Changes in service levels 

shall be submitted to the 911 Director. If such recommendations have a 
financial impact, the 911 Director will evaluate the impact and communicate 
it to the Combined User Committee in the preparation of the ensuing year’s 
budget. 

 
7. Assist the 911 Director as necessary in the preparation of the budget. 



 

 Page # 11 

 

 
8. Make recommendations to the 911 Director regarding Standard Operating 

Procedures (SOPs) that are specific to the Combined User Committee 
discipline making such recommendations. 

 
9. Review deliverables, policies, and budget.   

 
10. May create such temporary advisory committees as it shall require to 

investigate and make recommendations regarding special issues. 

 
11. Designated voting discipline representatives have the following specific 

responsibilities: 
 
 a) Law Enforcement Management Team 
 

• Law Enforcement members shall bear full responsibility for 
ensuring that the law enforcement data communications network 
and any Criminal History Records Information received by means of 
such network shall be used solely for the purposes of the 
administration of the criminal laws or for the purposes enumerated 
in Chapter 10.97 RCW.   

 

• Review and recommend law enforcement dispatch/radio 
procedures to the law enforcement section of the Lewis County 
Communications Center Policy, Procedures & Operations Manual. 

 
 b) Fire Services Management Team 

 

• Review and recommend fire and EMS dispatch/radio procedures to 
the fire and EMS section of the Lewis County Communications 
Center Policy, Procedures & Operations Manual.  

 
c) The combined voting representatives in both groups ”a” and “b” above 

have the following responsibilities: 
 

• Make budget recommendations to the 911 Director for 
Communications additions to the budget. 

• Recommend acquisition of new equipment. 

• Review and recommend changing the funding formula as 
necessary to ensure fair and equitable funding of Communications. 

• Review and recommend operating procedures other than those 
only related to either law enforcement or fire services. 

• Review inquiries, incidents, and accolades at quarterly meetings. 



 

 Page # 12 

 

• Provide an annual performance appraisal of the Communications 
Center, see:  Attachment E - Forms section, Communications 
Center Annual Performance Appraisal Form. 

 
d) Any action by the voting groups listed above in “a” through ”c” requires 

a majority vote of the group.   
 

 (F) Partner Agencies 
 

Partner Agency duties include: 
 

1. Train staff and follow the adopted standard operation protocols and 
procedures of the LCCC and approved discipline field manuals.  

 
2. Appoint a representative to the Combined User Committee to serve as their 

representative.   
 

3. At a minimum, the agency-appointed representatives may make 
recommendations at the quarterly Combined User Committee meetings 
regarding issues of procedures, policies, and annual budgets.   

 
4. Agency Representatives will keep the home agency apprised of the 

activities of the Combined User Committee and provide information on 
procedural changes.  

 
5. It is expected that Partner Agencies will work together to resolve any issues 

that arise when there is less than a unanimous consensus by the affected 
disciplines (Fire, Law, EMS) on suggested/recommended changes that will 
apply to all agencies in that discipline.  

 
(G) Equipment 

 
1. Mobile-Portable Agency Specific Equipment 
 Each Partner Agency shall be responsible for purchasing, repairing, and 

replacing its own mobile and portable radio equipment and retains all 
rights to such equipment.  

 
It is recommended that prior to purchasing user equipment, Partner 
Agency staff review products with the Radio Services Administrator in 
order to ensure interoperability and maximum effectiveness with the 
existing infrastructure.  The Radio Services Administrator 
recommendations are not binding; however, the County assumes no 
liability for efficiency and effectiveness for equipment purchased without 
following recommendations of the Radio Services Administrator.   

 



 

 Page # 13 

 

2. Exclusive Partner Agency Equipment  

 
 In the event that a Partner Agency to this agreement should require the 

installation of equipment or the performance of special services dedicated to 
the sole and special use of such partner, to the exclusion of the other 
partners hereto, such partner shall bear the entire cost of such equipment, 
its installation, maintenance, operation and repair.  Such funds shall be non-
refundable even on termination of such partner and/or removal of such 
equipment or the termination of such special services. 

 
3. County Equipment 

 
 All assets purchased by LCCC will be held in the name of “Lewis County” 

and used for the LCCC purposes. 

 
VII. COMBINED USER COMMITTEE  

 
(A) Membership  

 
The Combined User Committee membership shall consist of one (1) 
representative of each Partner Agency.    

 
(B) Chair, Vice Chair 

   
The Combined User Committee shall select a chair and vice chair. Together 
they will set the quarterly agenda, provide meeting notices to partner agency 
representatives, and preside over the meetings.  

 
(C) Agenda and Notices   

 
 Partner agency representatives desiring to propose Items for consideration on 

the agenda must submit the item in writing to the 911 Director no later than 
fourteen (14) days prior to the meeting date.  Written or electronic notices of all 
meetings shall be E-mailed to the voting representative of each partner agency 
at least one week (7 days) prior to the meeting date.  

 
 Voting on new items not previously included in notifications to the partner 

agency representatives is prohibited. 
 

(D) Meetings 
 
The Combined User Committee shall meet quarterly at such time and place as 
shall be determined by the members of the Combined User Committee.  
Minutes will be taken of all meetings and distributed to all Partner Agency 
Representatives. 



 

 Page # 14 

 

 
(E) Voting:    
 

Partner agency representatives listed in Section IV (D) and (E) may attend 
meetings and shall have rights to participate in all matters brought before the 
Combined User Committee; however, they shall be non-voting members. 
 
A. Voting members of the Combined User Committee will be as follows: 
 

1. Law Enforcement Management Team 
 

• Lewis County Sheriff, or designee 

• Centralia Chief of Police, or designee 

• Chehalis Chief of Police, or designee 

• One (1) municipal Police Department 
 

2. Fire Services Management Team 
 

• Chehalis Fire Chief, or designee 

• RFA Fire Chief, or designee 

• Two (2) representatives of Lewis County Fire Districts.  These 
representatives will be determined through the Lewis County Fire 
Chief’s Association. 

 
B. Non-voting Members  
 
 Non-voting members of the Combined User Committee will be as follows: 

 

 All Combined User Committee Partner Agency Representatives not 
included in Section “A” above are non-voting representatives. 

 
C. Electronic Voting  

 

 Electronic voting is allowed for all items that appear on the published 
agenda.  Such votes shall be cast by E-mail to the 911 Director no later 
than 9:00 a.m. on the morning of the scheduled meeting (to allow for 
tabulating said votes).    

 

D. List of Voting Members 
 

 Voting members shall be identified and a list provided annually in writing 
to the 911 Director.  This list will be used at Combined User Committee 
meetings to identify those having responsibility to cast votes. 

 
 1. All designed voting representatives may vote on issues of general 

consideration.   



 

 Page # 15 

 

 
 2. On issues pertaining only to law, only the designated law 

representatives may vote.   
 

 3. On issues pertaining only to fire services, only the fire services may 
vote. 

 
E. Tie Votes 

 
 A passed motion or question requires a majority of the votes.  A tie vote is 

a failed motion or question. 

 
VIII. FINANCING THE LCCC & COMMUNICATIONS INFRASTRUCTURE 

 

(A) Program Costs 
 

The communications program costs are separated into the following five (5) 
categories, described in greater detail below: 

 
 1. LCCC Maintenance & Operation Costs 
 2. Maintenance & Support for Infrastructure 
 3. Equipment Repair & Replacement fund for LCCC Equipment 
 4. Equipment Repair & Replacement fund for Infrastructure Equipment 
 5. Building and Equipment Fund 

 
The LCCC and the communications infrastructure is intended to be self-
sufficient and supported by the User groups.  It is the intent of all the partners to 
this agreement that each of them shall pay their proportionate share of the 
annual costs of maintenance, operation, repair, and building and equipment 
assets of the LCCC and the communications system infrastructure. All of such 
funds shall be for the sole and exclusive purpose of operating, repairing, 
maintaining, and administering the LCCC and communications infrastructure. 

 
Dedicated revenue such as grants, “911 Sales & Use Taxes”, and payments 
made by the other parties hereto shall be deducted from the operating costs 
with the balance to be divided among the User Groups as outlined in 
Attachment A – Funding Formula. 

 
(B) General LCCC Costs   
 

1. Maintenance & Operation Costs of the LCCC 
 

a. Operating Costs 
 

General operations costs for the Communications Center are divided into 
the following areas: 



 

 Page # 16 

 

 

• Salaries, benefits, supplies 

• Interfund Costs (Maintenance, utilities, postage, administrative 
overhead, etc.) 

• Contract Services (Licenses, phone service, travel, training etc.) 
 

b. Administrative Costs 
 

Administrative and contract services costs are provided by Lewis County 
as required.  It is the intent of the parties that the cost of such services 
shall be included in the LCCC annual budget, based upon review of such 
costs by the Combined User Group, and that the County will thereafter be 
reimbursed for the provision of such services.  Such services include, but 
are not necessarily limited to: 

 

• Facility space to house the LCCC 

• Personnel/employee services 

• Maintenance of the facility and systems 

• Legal Services 

• Networking Services  

• Risk Management 

• Human Resources 

• Financial Services 

• Contract Services 
 

Upon request of any partner hereto or of any member of the Combined 
User Group, the County will provide detailed information regarding 
administrative services that are proposed to be charged to and included in 
the LCCC annual budget for any year.  Such detail shall include the 
number of hours anticipated for such services and the hourly cost to the 
County for such services. See, as a sample, Attachment B Annual Budget 
Report.  

 
2. Maintenance & Support for Infrastructure 

 
The Radio Services Division staff provide the Maintenance & Support of the 
radio and communications infrastructure.  This support is included in the 
annual budget through interfund rates.  

 
3. Equipment Repair & Replacement for LCCC Equipment 

 
The LCCC will maintain an Equipment Repair & Replacement (ER&R) Fund 
dedicated solely to the repair and replacement of equipment and facilities of 
the LCCC.  Funding of the ER&R LCCC Equipment Fund is included in the 
annual budget and is calculated based upon inventory and replacement dates 



 

 Page # 17 

 

provided by the Lewis County IT Department.  See Attachment D for 
Equipment Amortization Schedule. 

 
4. Equipment Repair & Replacement for Infrastructure Equipment  
 

The Radio Services Administrator will maintain an Equipment Repair & 
Replacement (ER&R) Fund dedicated solely to the replacement of the 
infrastructure, equipment, and facilities based upon a published amortization 
schedule of equipment. It is the intent of the parties that the cost of such 
services shall be included in the annual budget, based upon review of such 
costs by the Combined User Group, and that the County will thereafter be 
reimbursed for the provision of such services.   
 
It is the intention of Lewis County to maintain the communication 
infrastructure until a funding formula or agreement is made with the User 
Groups. (It is anticipated that infrastructure funding will be included no later 
than 2025.) 

 
5. Building and Equipment Fund  
 

Current facilities for the LCCC are dated and inadequate.  Funding for 
building a new facility are not currently addressed within this ILA; however, 
partners are challenged to establish a plan to work toward this goal. 

 
Funding of the Building and Equipment Fund shall be shared by the Partner 
Agencies listed in this agreement.  In the event that a Partner Agency hereto 
should terminate and withdraw from this agreement in accordance with the 
Section XII - Partner Agency Withdrawals hereof, none of the funds paid by 
such partner into the building and equipment fund prior to the date of any 
termination notice shall be refunded; however, such Partner Agency shall not 
be required to make further payments to the building and equipment fund for 
the reminder of that calendar year until the effective date of termination. 

 
6. Fund Balance 

 
The Fund Balance provides the operational capital to continue operations 
until revenues have been received.  

 

IX. ESTABLISHING AN ANNUAL BUDGET 
 
 (A) Annual Budget Preparation 
 

1. Budget Committee  
 



 

 Page # 18 

 

A Budget Committee will be selected consisting of at least one (1) 
representative from each of the Partner Agency groups listed in Section IV.  
Identification of Partners of this Agreement.   

 
2. “Draft” LCCC Operating Budget 

 
 At the direction of the 911 Director, the Manager shall develop a “Draft” 

annual operating budget of the LCCC.  The budget period shall be on a 
calendar year basis, beginning on the first day in January of each year and 
ending on the thirty-first day of December.  The budgetary process shall be 
in accordance with Lewis County budget timetables. 

 
 3. “Preliminary” Budget  
   
  The Budget Committee will work with the 911 Director to combine the LCCC 

“Draft” Budget and any other associated budget item (other categories), as 
well as costs for new services requested and approved into a “Preliminary” 
Budget to present to the Combined User Committee for their 
recommendations.   

 
4. Combined User Committee Review 
 
 The 911 Director will present the Budget Committee’s recommended 

“Preliminary” Budget to the Combined User Committee for their input, 
resulting in the final “Preliminary” Budget to be presented to the County.   

 
5. Adjustments to the Combined User Agency Funding Formula 
  
 The 911 Director may make a recommendation to the Combined User 

Committee, based on the annual cost sharing report, to make necessary 
changes to the Combined User Agency Funding Formula, Attachment C to 
this agreement.   

 
(B) Revenue 
 
 Revenues from sources other than User fees shall be applied against the costs.  

These include the following: 
  

• 911 Sales & Use Taxes 

• Grants 

• Other county department payments 

• Other secondary User Groups (AMR-Medic One)   
 
 The difference between budgeted costs and these revenues shall determine the 

net amount to be paid by Partner Agencies. 
  



 

 Page # 19 

 

Any excess of revenues from grants, “911 Sales & Use Taxes” and payments by 
partners hereto over expenditures in any budget (calendar) year shall be carried 
forward to the ensuing year’s budget. 

 
(C) Expenses 

 
The partner agencies will be advised of any unexpected expenses that are 
anticipated to exceed the adopted budget.  The Director will follow the current 
county budget amendment process in requesting funds to pay for the 
unexpected expenses.  Subsequently, the following year(s) user rates would be 
adjusted to cover the unexpected expenses from the previous year(s).   

 
(D) Division of Costs 

 

The costs to be divided among the Partner Agencies hereto will eventually 

include the annual budgeted operation, maintenance, and building and 

equipment costs, including the building and equipment funds (set forth in the 

Communications Program Strategic Planning Cost-Sharing Timetable on page 

17), after deducting any grants, “911 Sales & Use Taxes” and other revenues 

not constituting payments by parties hereto. See Attachment A, Fee Distribution 

Flowchart. 

(E) Biannual Budget 

It is the consensus of the partner agencies that it is desirable to eventually work 

toward having a minimum of a biannual budget for budget planning purposes.  

This is a goal to work toward as the fiscal structure develops. 

 

X. COUNTY BUDGET PROCESS 
 

The annual budget shall be developed with involvement from the Combined User 
Committee, 911 Director, and various Lewis County Budget/Fiscal services.  The 
three phases of budgeting include the following:  

 
(A) User Request:   
 

The Combined User Committee shall work with the 911 Director between 
March and April to establish the following: 

 

• Gather preliminary requests 

• Identify budget impacts and Combined User commitments 

• Develop a final Preliminary Budget Request for submission 
 
(B) Budget Submission: 
   



 

 Page # 20 

 

• June 1:   
The 911 Director shall submit a total Preliminary LCCC budget to the 
Lewis County Budget Department. 

  

• July 1:  
The 911 Director will submit the proposed fees to the contracting 
agencies for their budgeting processes.  A copy of the fees will be sent 
to the agency representatives of the Combined Users Committee. 

 
(C) County Adoption:   
 

• August 1 (approximately):  
 The Lewis County Budget Department will present the annual 

Preliminary Budget to the BOCC 
 

• September 1 (approximately):  
 BOCC conducts Budget Amendment Hearings 
 

• December 31 (on or before, in accordance with RCWs):  
 BOCC adopts the Final Budget 

 
(D) Budget Changes 
 
 In the event that there are any program changes and/or User changes, or in 

the event of changes in the partners to this agreement necessitating budget 
changes, any supplemental budget shall go through the budget stages set 
forth herein and comply with all applicable Lewis County budget policies and 
local government budget laws and regulations. 

 
(E) Changes to Preliminary User Fees 
 
 It may be necessary to make changes to the Preliminary User fees 

distributed in July due to unknown increases such as medical expenses, 
wages, and benefits increases not settled upon until later in the year.  

 

XI. BILLING PARTNER AGENCIES 
 

The estimated amount to be billed to each Partner Agency participating in the LCCC 
and receiving services of the LCCC for the ensuing calendar year shall be 
determined in accordance with this agreement and submitted to each member no 
later than October 1 of each year. 

 
Each Partner Agency’s average percentage of the total user fee, as identified in 
Attachment A – Funding Formula, will remain the same unless the 911 Director 
recommends recalculation of the formula based upon an actual or anticipated 
significant change. The recommendations could include an adjustment in the 



 

 Page # 21 

 

percentage of the agencies’ user fees.  For example, a significant change would 
include, but not be limited to, a substantial annexation, population increase, or use of 
dedicated resources by one or more user agencies.  Authority to modify the User 
Agency Funding Formula remains with the 911 Director with Combined User 
Committee review.   

 
In the event that the annual budget of the LCCC should be changed by a 
supplemental budget because of increased expenditures or the addition of more 
partners to this agreement, the annual and quarterly payments required by each of 
the parties hereto shall be adjusted at the beginning of the next fiscal year. 

 
Additional emergency service providers may be permitted to become partners to this 
agreement with the approval of the Combined User Committee and the 911 Director.  
If the joinder of additional partners is so permitted, applicable rates shall be 
negotiated.  The remittance for the remainder of the current year shall be set aside 
as revenue to reduce fees to the existing Partner Agencies in the next year. 
 
Lewis County shall invoice each partner hereto at the beginning of each quarter (3 
months) for one-fourth of such partner’s share of the LCCC budget as follows: 

 

Quarter Month 

1ST Quarter January 1 

2nd Quarter April 1 

3rd Quarter July 1 

4th Quarter October 1 

 
The amount of such invoice shall be determined by dividing such partner’s share of 
the LCCC’s annual budget by four (4) separate payments.  Payment of invoices shall 
be made within 30 days thereafter. 

 
XII. Partner Agency Withdrawals - Procedures 

 
 (A)  Withdrawal of a Partner Agency Other Than the County 

 
 1. Required Notice to Withdraw From Agreement  
 

Upon giving a written notice thereof to all of the partners to this agreement 
prior to June 1, any of the parties hereto, except the County, may withdraw 
from this agreement at the end of any calendar year.   

 
 2. Partner Agency Rights after Notice of Intent to Withdraw 

 
After June 1, and the giving of such notice, the withdrawing partner shall not 
be required to make further contributions to the building and equipment 



 

 Page # 22 

 

fund, but shall make all other payments for the remainder of the year and 
until the effective date of such withdrawal.   

 
In the event that the withdrawing partner has purchased and installed 
special equipment, such equipment may be removed upon withdrawal from 
this agreement; provided, however, any and all costs associated with such 
removal shall be borne and paid by the withdrawing partner. 

 
(B) Termination of Partner Agency 

 
1. Failure to Remit Fees or Repeated Policy Violations 

 
Termination of this service may result from major noncompliance of the 
adopted LCCC Policy, Procedures & Operations Manual, and/or failure to 
pay agreed upon rates.  Termination may also result from failure to perform 
obligations under this Agreement.  

 
The termination process is a three-step process that may be resolved at any 
step of the process: 

 
a. 911 Director:  911 Director will initiate a fact finding on the non-

compliant issue(s), provide a copy to the violating agency, and issue 
a written report with a recommendation. 

 
b. Combined User Committee:  The 911 Director will present the facts 

and his recommendations to the Combined User Committee (CUC).  
The CUC will be provided an opportunity to discuss the matter and 
make their recommendation. 

 
c. Lewis County BOCC: The 911 Director will make a presentation to 

the Lewis County BOCC on the facts, his/her recommendation, and 
the recommendation of the Combined User Committee.  The BOCC 
will make the final decision to terminate a Partner Agency.  

 
2. Obligations and Rights upon Termination:   

 
Following termination, a Partner Agency that has been terminated shall be 
subject to the same obligations and entitled to the same rights as a 
withdrawing Partner Agency. 

 
 



 

 Page # 23 

 

XIII. DISSOLUTION OF LCCC & ILA 
 

County Withdrawal from Agreement 

 
In the event of the withdrawal by Lewis County, the LCCC shall be dissolved.   

 
Upon giving 18 or more months’ written notice hereof to all of the other partners to 
this agreement, the County may withdraw from this agreement at the end of a 
calendar year.   

 
In the absence of a succeeding agreement among all of the other partners to this 
agreement at the time of such withdrawal which provides for collective operation of a 
communication center, all equipment, facilities and property of the LCCC shall be 
distributed to the original purchasing jurisdiction.  

 
After giving such notice, and during the final 12 months immediately prior to the 
effective date of such withdrawal, the County shall not be required to make further 
contributions to the building and equipment fund, but shall make all other payments 
required by this agreement until the effective date of such withdrawal.   

 
In the event that the County has purchased and installed special equipment, such 
equipment may be removed upon withdrawal from this agreement; provided, 
however, that any and all costs associated with such removal shall be borne and 
paid by the County. 

 
XIV. Confidentiality 
 

Partner Agencies shall have the right to continue monitoring 911 calls, subject to the 
requirements set forth in the hold harmless agreement adopted by Resolution No. 
89-110 of the Lewis County Board of Commissioners dated April 6, 1989.  Each 
party hereto, its employees, subcontractors, and their employees, shall maintain the 
confidentiality of all information provided by the Center or acquired by Partner 
Agencies in the performance of the Agreement, except upon the prior written 
consent of the parties or court order or a subpoena issued pursuant to the applicable 
court of administrator agency rule out of such court or agency having competent 
jurisdiction over the county or the user. 

 
XV. MEDIATION and/or ARBITRATION 

 
Any controversy between the parties in regard to the application or interpretation of 
the Agreement may be submitted to and determined by mediation and/or arbitration 
in accordance with RCW Chapter 7.04 and RCW Chapter 7.07. 

 



 

 Page # 24 

 

XVI. INDEMNIFICATION 
 

Lewis County shall indemnify and hold harmless the Partner Agencies, their 
employees and representatives from any and all claims and actions, including 
expenses, reasonable attorney’s fees, and investigative costs claimed by anyone by 
reason of injury or death, or damage to persons or property sustained as a result of 
the acts, or alleged acts, of the County’s elected and appointed officials, employees, 
and volunteers as such acts relate to the delivery of communications services to the 
extent of liability coverage.  

 
Partner Agencies shall indemnify and hold harmless the County, its elected and 
appointed officials, employees, and volunteers from any and all claims and actions, 
including expenses, reasonable attorney’s fees, and investigative costs claimed by 
anyone by reason of injury or death, or damage to persons or property sustained as 
a result of the acts, or alleged acts, of the employees or any other representatives of 
the Partner Agencies, as such acts relate to providing services which the partner 
agencies are obliged or expected to provide.  

 
XVII. LIABILITY COVERAGE 

 
Liability coverage shall be provided by Lewis County and the Partner Agencies 
through self-insurance and commercial insurance policies, and provide as a 
minimum the usual protection of general liability, civil rights liability, auto and errors 
and omissions.  Such coverage shall be based on a minimum of $1,000,000 per 
occurrence.  The expense of coverage for the Center shall be a part of the operating 
costs of the Center. 

 
XVIII. NOTICE 

 
Except as set forth elsewhere in this Agreement, for all purposes under this 
Agreement, except service of process, notice shall be given by the Partner 
Agencies to the 911 Director.  Notice to the Partner Agencies for all purposes under 
this Agreement shall be given to the address reflected below.  Notice may be given 
by delivery or by depositing in the United States mail, first class, postage prepaid. 

 
XIX. SEVERABILITY 

 
If any term or condition of this contract or the application thereof to any person or 
persons or circumstances is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms, 
conditions, or applications which can be given effect without the invalid term, 
conditions, or application.  To this end, the terms and conditions of this contract are 
declared severable.   

 



 

 Page # 25 

 

XX. TERMINATION OF OTHER COMMUNICATION AGREEMENTS 
 

Upon the effective date of this Agreement, it is in place of, supersedes, and replaces 
any existing “Interlocal Agreement for Operation, Maintenance and Participation in 
the Lewis County Communications Center.”   

 

XXI. DURATION OF AGREEMENT 
 

This Agreement is for a six (6) month period beginning January 1, 2024, and ending 
June 30, 2024.  It shall commence when executed by the BOCC and end on June 
30, 2024.  Provided, the CUC may approve an extension of the duration of this 
Agreement by six (6) months from June 30, 2024, to December 31, 2024, by a 
majority vote. 

 

XXII. ALTERATIONS AND AMENDMENTS 
 

This agreement may be amended by mutual agreement of the partners.  Any partner 
agency may request changes in the Agreement to the User Committee.  Such 
amendments shall not be binding unless they are in writing, voted on with a majority 
approval, signed by personnel authorized to bind each of the Partner Agencies, and 
with final approval of alternations or amendments residing by resolution of the Lewis 
County BOCC. 

 

XXIII. OWNERSHIP OF FACILITIES 
 

There are no facilities or properties to be acquired or purchased as a result of this 
agreement; provided, however, upon termination of this agreement, all equipment, 
facilities and property of the LCCC then owned by it, including any facilities or 
properties acquired from funds accumulated in the building and equipment fund, or 
otherwise, shall be divided among the partners hereto in the manner described 
hereof; provided, further, that in the event that there is an accumulation of 
unexpended funds upon the termination of this agreement, such funds shall be 
refunded or paid to the then partners hereto in a manner which is proportionate to 
their respective contributions thereto. 

 

XXIV. FILING OF AGREEMENT 
 

This agreement shall be filed pursuant to the requirements of RCW 39.34.040. 
 

XXV. EXECUTION IN COUNTERPARTS 
 

Lewis County shall execute the original of this agreement.  Each other partner 
hereto shall sign a counterpart of the original of this agreement.  The partners hereto 
intend that all the signed counterparts taken together with the original will be 
considered as one original document, and given full force and effect as if all partners 
had signed one document. 



 

 Page # 26 

 

 

XXVI.  TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE 
 

Time is of the essence for all terms, conditions, obligations, and duties set forth or 
referred to in this agreement. 
 

XXVII. CONTRACT INTERPRETATION 
 

This Agreement has been mutually negotiated and prepared, and shall not be 
construed or interpreted adversely to any Party. 
 

 

APPROVALS AND CONCURRENCES 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
Jonathan Meyer, Prosecuting Attorney 
 
 
By:  Deputy Prosecutor        Date:   
 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
LEWIS COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 
 
Chairperson         Date: 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
Clerk of the Board        Date: 
 
 

Lewis County Sheriff’s Office 
 
 
Sheriff     Date 

 Lewis County Coroner 
 
 
Coroner    Date 

Centralia, City of 
 
 
City Manager 

 Chehalis, City of 
 
 
City Manager 

Napavine, City of 
 
 
Mayor 

 Pe Ell, Town of 
 
 
Mayor 

Winlock, City of 
 
 
Mayor 

 Vader, City of 
 
 
Mayor 



 

 Page # 27 

 

Toledo, City of 
 
 
Mayor 

 Mossyrock, City of 
 
 
Mayor 

Morton, City of 
 
 
Mayor 

 LCFD # 1 – Onalaska 
 
 
Commissioner 

LCFD # 2 – Toledo 
 
 
Commissioner 

 LCFD # 3 – Mossyrock 
 
 
Commissioner 

LCFD # 4 – Morton 
 
 
Commissioner 

 LCFD # 5 – Napavine 
 
 
Commissioner 

LCFD # 6 – Chehalis 
 
 
Commissioner 

 LCFD # 8 – Salkum 
 
 
Commissioner 

LCFD # 9 – Mineral 
 
 
Commissioner 

 LCFD # 10 – Packwood 
 
 
Commissioner 

LCFD # 11 – Pe Ell 
 
 
Commissioner 

 LCFD # 13 – Curtis 
 
 
Commissioner 

LCFD # 14 – Randle 
 
 
Commissioner 

 LCFD # 15 – Winlock 
 
 
Commissioner 

LCFD # 16 – Doty 
 
 
Commissioner 

 LCFD # 17 – Ashford 
 
 
Commissioner 

LCFD # 18 – Glenoma 
 
 
Commissioner 

 Cowlitz-Lewis Fire District 20 (Vader) 
 
 
Commissioner 

Riverside Fire Authority (RFA) 
 
 
Commissioner 

 American Medical Response (AMR) 
 
 
Director 

Medic One (South County EMS) 
 
 
Director 

  

 

  



 

 Page # 28 

 

Attachment A – COMMUNICATIONS FEE DISTRIBUTION 
 

 

 

        
 
    
 

 
 
 
 

      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
* NOTE:  To be established.  While these costs are necessary to accurately determine the total 

communications systems operating budget, they are not currently part of the funding formula, nor 

shared by all partner agencies (currently paid by only Lewis County).  

RECURRING REVENUE 
 

911 Sales & Use Taxes 
Grants 
Agency Contributions 

- DEM 
- Others (PW etc) 

Private Organizations 
- AMR 
- Medic One 
- Towing Services 

 

TOTAL OPERATING COSTS 

911 Center Operating Costs 
- Salaries 
- Benefits 
- Training 
- County Admin Expense 

*ER&R * 
- 911 Center Equipment 
- Infrastructure Equipment 

*Infrastructure M & S 
*Capital Improvements  

Offset By 

Leaves Remaining Balance to be assessed to 

Individual Agencies as outlined in Attachment “C” 

FIRE AGENCIES – 25% 
 

LAW ENFORCEMENT – 75% 
 
 



 

 Page # 29 

 

This attachment is included only as a sample of prior budget items and should not be relied upon or construed to limit budget items.  



 

 Page # 30 

 

Attachment C – Funding Formula 
 
The funding formula rates are used to establish each individual agency’s percentage 
share of the discipline’s net costs for the annual LCCC budget.  During the calculation 
year, the previous three-year usage calculation will be applied to the projected (next 
year) budget figure to arrive at the fees charged.   
 

To bring the current fees in line with the actual budget figures, the 2018 budget includes 
a previously agreed upon 10% increase (previously the revenue fund balance was used 
to retain user fees at a level below the actual budget costs).  The budget for calendar 
years 2012-2016 is incorporated herein as Attachment B. 
 

The ratio set forth in this section and the method of dividing costs between law 
enforcement and fire service shall not be modified nor changed in any manner, except 
by amendment of this agreement in the manner provide below. 
 

USER FEE FORMULA 
 

 1. Law Enforcement (75%) 
 

The net costs of the law enforcement dispatch is 75% (seventy-five percent).  
Costs to be divided among law enforcement departments shall be divided by an 
average of usage over the previous three (3) years.   
 

Calculation of usage shall be based upon:  

• 45% based on calls for service to include vehicle stops and officer-initiated 
activities (metric calculated as the most current three (3) year average for 
each respective jurisdiction) 

• 45% based on the number of funded commissioned FTE’s for each 
jurisdiction, updated annually 

• 10% based on the population for each jurisdiction, updated annually 
 
2.   Fire Services (25%) 
 
 The net costs for fire service dispatch is 25% (twenty-five percent), which 

shall be divided among fire services based upon an annual average of 
each district’s usage from the previous three (3) year period (based on 
calls alone).   

  



 

 Page # 31 

 

 

 

Attachment D – Equipment Amortization Schedule 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

To Be Completed After the 
Work Plan is Established 

  



 

 Page # 32 

 

 
 
 

Attachment E – Forms 
 
 
 

Incident Inquiry Form 
 

Formal Complaint Form 
 

Flowchart for Incident Inquiry & Formal Complaint Forms 
 

Outstanding Performance Form  
 

Lewis County Communications Center  
Annual Performance Appraisal Form  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  



 

 Page # 33 

 

 
 



 

 Page # 34 

 

 

 



 

 Page # 35 

 

  



 

 Page # 36 

 

 



 

 Page # 37 

 

 



 

 Page # 38 

 

  



 

 Page # 39 

 

Attachment F  
COMMUNICATIONS USER GROUP  

MEETING AGENDA - Draft 

 
 
 

I. Call to Order 
 
II. Introductions 
 
III. Approval of the minutes from the last meeting 
 
IV. Reports 
 
  A. Fire - EMS Reports 
 
  B. Law Reports 
 
 C. Combined User Group Reports 
 
  D. 911 Communications Center Report 

 
1. Budget Status 
2. Improvements 
3. Projects 
4. New Policies 
5. State 911/Advisory Committee 

 
V. New Business 
 
VI. Good of the Order 
 
VII.  Adjournment 

 

 

  



 

 Page # 40 

 

Attachment G – 

Intentionally Omitted 

 

 

  



 

 Page # 41 

 

Attachment H - Acronyms and Definitions 
 

Administrative 

Services 

Services provided by Lewis County.  Includes but not 

limited to facility, personal services, maintenance, 

legal services, networking series, risk management 

and financial services. 

BOCC Lewis County Board of County Commissioners. 

Combined User 

Committee 

Committee representing an equal number of 

emergency service provider’s representatives 

appointed by the user agencies representing Fire, 

Law, and the Communications Center.  Duties 

include making recommendations to the 911 Director 

regarding developing dispatching procedures and 

SOPs, reviewing budgets, and developing policies. 

Communications 

Center Administrative 

Assistant 

Provides secretarial services to the Combined User 

Committee, as directed by the 911 Director.  

Communications 

Center operating costs 

Currently includes staff salaries, benefits, training, 

and annual expenses to operate the dispatch center.   

County Administrative 

Expenses 

Lewis County shall provide administrative & contract 

services to the LCCC as required.  Such services 

include, but are not necessarily limited to: 

• Facility space to house the LCCC 

• Personnel/employee services 

• Maintenance of the facility and systems 

• Legal Services 

• Networking Services  

• Risk Management 

• Human Resources 

• Financial Services 

• Contract Services 

It is also the intent of the parties that the cost of such 

services shall be included in the LCCC annual 

budget. 

Communications 

Systems 

The Lewis County communications systems include 

both the 911 Communications Center (Dispatch) and 

the external infrastructure that provides the 

communications connection between dispatching and 

the response communities. 



 

 Page # 42 

 

Director (911) Director of the Department of Emergency Services, 

appointed by the BOCC.  Establishes policies and 

budgets, with review by the Combined User 

Committee, for the Communications Center. 

Formal Complaint 

Form 

Form used by anyone outside the employment of the 

911 Department who wishes to make a formal 

complaint about an employee of the 911 Department. 

Discipline Field 

Manuals 

Lewis County Communications Center Policy, 

Procedures & Operations Manual: specific sections 

by discipline as follows: 

 601-700  Law Enforcement Operations 

 701-800 Fire District Operations 

 801-900 EMS Operations  

Incident Inquiry Form Form to be used to identify equipment, personnel, and 

procedural issues between 911 Center and the User 

partners.  May be initiated by either partner. 

ILA Interlocal Agreement  

LCC Lewis County Communications 

LCCC Lewis County Communications Center 

LCC Policy, 

Procedures and 

Operations Manual 

Guiding document addressing policy, procedure, and 

operations governing all Lewis County partners 

participating in the Lewis County Communications 

program. 

Partner Agency Signatory agencies in the Interlocal Agreement (ILA) 

for Lewis County Communications, including Lewis 

County, municipalities, Law Enforcement, Fire 

Services and Emergency Medical Services entities. 

Revenue All sources of income, except User fees to include:  

grants, 911 taxes, and other miscellaneous payments.  

SOP Standard Operating Procedures 

User Agency Funding 

Formula 

Formula used to establish user costs based on the 

LCCC intending to be self-sufficient.  Users pay their 

proportionate share of the total annual costs for 

maintenance, operation, and repair costs after any 

revenue has been applied.  
  



 

 Page # 43 

 

Attachment I – Lewis County Government Radio Sites 
 

Site Location Description 

1.  Cooks Hill Centralia Area off Cooks Hill 

RFA station 5 
• RFA Prime simulcast site 

• Fire F1 Cooks can B/U Crego fire if needed 

• REDNET west 

• Main dispatch tie in for RFA 

• FRA B/U repeater west 

• Microwave to Seminary Hill (4.6 GHz licensed) 

2.  Davis Hill North Centralia off Roanoke 

at Centralia water reservoir 
• Centralia 3 for Centralia PD 

• City PD Davis voted receiver 

• S/O Davis voted receiver 

3.  Chehalis Ridge JE of N National Ave and 

Chamber of Commerce Wy 
• City PD prime site 

• Main dispatch tie in for City PD 

• Voter controlled base station 

• Microwave t Old Courthouse (2.4 GHz spread spectrum 

unlicensed) 

4.  Brockway Chehalis are on Brockway Rd 

and Smokey Lane 
• Chehalis 3 for Chehalis PD (city owned) 

5.  Seminary Hill Centralia area on Seminary Hill 

Rd 
• FRA Seminary voted receiver 

• City PD Seminary voted receiver 

• Microwave to Cooks Hill (4.9 GHz licensed) 

6.  Historic Courthouse Chehalis on Main Street • Dispatch center and main hub 

• E911 main answering point 

• ECW phone system 

• Motorola MCC7100 K core Radio control 

• Lewis County P/W Control station 

• LCSO Courthouse control station (voted) 

• City PD B/U 

• RFA B/U and RFA B/U repeater control station 

• Auxiliary Base station 

o REDNET 

o LERN 

o S/O West 

o Fire F1 

o HEAR 

o DEM W 

• Fire monitor (recording purposes only) 

• WSP receiver 

• NAWAS and EAS 

• Receiver voting eqpt for LCSO, Fire F1, P/W, DEM 

• Microwave to Summit Hill (2.4 GHz spread spectrum 

• Cabled tie in to law and Justice Center 

• CEMNET low band to State EMD (911 Department) 

• Emergency Operations Center  

7.  Law and Justice Chehalis on Main Street • Microwave to Crego Hill (6 GHz licensed) 

• Cabled tie in to Old Courthouse 

• Radio Amateur Civil Emergency Services eqpt. 

8.  Lewis County Public 

Works 

Chehalis off Kresky Ave • Cabled tie-in of desk remotes to P/W control station at 

Historic Courthouse 

9.  Crego Hill SW of Chehalis in hills 

overlooking Adna 
• Microwave to Law & Justice Ctr and Crawford Peak in 

Thurston Co (6 GHz licensed) 

• Microwave to Dog Mountain (6 GHz licensed) 

• Fire F1 Crego transceiver (voted) 

• P/W west repeater 

• LCSO Crego Control station (voted) 



 

 Page # 44 

 

Site Location Description 

• FRA Crego (microwave and simulcast repeater for RFA) 

(RFA owned) 

• VTAC 11 West transceiver 

10.  Baw Faw SW of Chehalis in hills 

overlooking Boistfort 
• LCSO west repeater 

• DEM west repeater 

11.  Area 2 Shop Spooner Rd & US 6 • DEM control station 

12.  Toledo Airport Jackson Highway • Fire F1 voted receiver 

• REDNET south transceiver 

• Public Works voted receiver 

• DEM voted receiver 

• 4.9 GHz licensed Microwave to Hopkins 

13.  Onalaska Onalaska Fire Station 2 • Fire F1 Onalaska voted receiver (Centurylink/TDS) 

14.  Democrat Hill NE of Salkum on Schoen Rd • Fire F1 Democrat transceiver (voted receiver on TELCO 

wireline CenturyLink/TDS) 

15.  Hopkins Hill WNW of Morton off Short Rd • P/W East repeater 

• Fire F1 transceiver 

• DEM voted receiver 

• LCSO voted receiver 

• Microwave to Toledo (4.9 GHz licensed) 

• WSDOT microwave to Dog Mt. (11 GHz licensed) 

16.  Dog Mountain Due South of Glenoma in hills • Microwave to Crego Hill (6 GHz licensed) 

• Microwave to Bennett Rd (5.8 GHz spread spectrum 

unlicensed) 

• LCSO Dog voted receiver 

• Fire F1 Dog transceiver (voted) 

• East Fire Randle/LGS link control station 

• East Fire Packwood B/U control station 

• WSDOT microwave to Hopkins Hill (11 GHz licensed) 

17.  Storm King South of Mineral in the 

mountains 
• LCSO Storm King repeater 

• Storm King 9/17 fire repeater 

• Solar only site 

18.  Burley Mountain SSE of Randle in the 

mountains above Cispus 
• LCSO East repeater 

• DEM East repeater 

• Solar only site 

19.  LCFD #14 Highway 12 Randle • E Fire Randle repeater 

• LGS Link repeater 

20.  Bennett Rd Mile Post 124 on US 12 

between Randle and Packwood 
• Microwave to Dog Mt. (5.8 GHz spread spectrum 

unlicensed) 

• Microwave to Packwood (2.4 GHz spread spectrum 

unlicensed) 

• Public Works Bennett voted receiver 

• DEM Bennett voted receiver 

• REDNET East transceiver 

• VTAC 11 East transceiver 

21.  Packwood At the WWPPS surge tank 

above Packwood 
• E Fire Packwood repeater 

• Microwave to Bennett Rd (2.4 GHz spread spectrum 

unlicensed) 

• LCSO Packwood voted receiver 

22. Lewis County Jail  Chehalis on Chehalis Ave. • Lewis County Jail repeater (MOTOTRBO) 

 



BOCC AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Resolution: 24-022 BOCC Meeting Date: Jan. 16, 2024

Suggested Wording for Agenda Item: Agenda Type: Deliberation

Approve an Interlocal Agreement between Lewis County and public safety partner entities for the

operation, maintenance and participation in Lewis County 911 Communications

Contact: Jennifer Libby-Jones Phone: 360-740-3394 

Department: COMM - 911

Description:
Approve an Interlocal Agreement between Lewis County and public safety partner entities for the

operation, maintenance and participation in Lewis County 911 Communications.

Approvals:

User Status

PA's Office Approved

Publication Requirements:
Publications: 

Additional Copies: Cover Letter To:



BEFORE THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
LEWIS COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

IN THE MATTER OF:

APPROVE AN INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT
BETWEEN LEWIS COUNTY AND PUBLIC SAFETY
PARTNER ENTITIES FOR THE OPERATION,
MAINTENANCE AND PARTICIPATION IN LEWIS
COUNTY 911 COMMUNICATIONS

RESOLUTION NO. 24-022

WHEREAS, Chapter 39.34 RCW, the Interlocal Cooperation Act, provides for
interlocal cooperation between governmental agencies to make the most efficient
use of their powers by enabling them to cooperate with other localities on a basis
of mutual advantage; and

WHEREAS, Lewis County provides 911 and dispatching services to all public
safety entities within the County under an Interlocal Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the parties, Lewis County and its partner agencies, have been
operating under the the ILA since January 1, 2018, and terminated December 31,
2023, and have requested to extend that ILA to June 30, 2024; and

WHEREAS, this extension will ensure continued cooperation between all parties
while efforts are being undertaken to draft a new agreement.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of County Commissioners of
Lewis County hereby approves of the terms and conditions of the attached
Interlocal Agreement and hereby authorizes the Chair of the Board of County
Commissioners to sign the same on behalf of the County 

 .

DONE IN OPEN SESSION this ____ day of _____________, ______.

Page 1 of 2 Res. 24-022



APPROVED AS TO FORM:
Jonathan Meyer, Prosecuting Attorney 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
LEWIS COUNTY, WASHINGTON

David Bailey
By: David Bailey, 
Chief Civil Deputy Prosecuting Attorney

Scott J. Brummer
Scott J. Brummer, Chair

ATTEST: Lindsey R. Pollock, DVM
Lindsey R. Pollock, DVM, Vice Chair

Rieva Lester, CMC, 
Clerk of the Lewis County Board of
County Commissioners

Sean D. Swope
Sean D. Swope, Commissioner

Page 2 of 2 Res. 24-022





The City of Napavine is an equal opportunity employer and provider. 
Incorporated November 21, 1913 

 
 
 
 
 
To: Mayor and City Council 
 
From: Rachelle Denham, City Clerk      
RE: Clerk’s Report for Council Meeting, January 23, 2024 
 

 
 
 December billing cycle the city billed out a total of $232,243.62 in water and 

sewer. 
 Receipted in $188,421.12 
 4 payment plans currently with outstanding balances of $1,268.19 all to be 

collected by 1/30/2024 (OCT/NOV usage)  
 2 shutoffs for December billing  
 Total of 265 badger meters in the ground – up from 240 that was last reported.  
 35 customers have signed up for the EyeOnWater app, up from 26.  
 Year to Date, the city has billed out a total of $1,403,908.52 and has receipted in 

$1,375,087.61.  
 Current dog licenses renewed/registered for 2024 is 57, last year’s total 104. 
 17 current senior/disabled discount accounts, pending 6 renewals w/4 new 

requests.  
 
 

Clerk’s Office 
407 Birch Ave SW, P. O. Box 810 

Napavine, WA 98565 
Phone: (360) 262-3547 

Fax: (360) 262-9199 

www.cityofnapavine.com 

 

 
 
 







 

PUBLIC WORKS & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

407 Birch Ave SW, P. O. Box 810 Napavine, WA 98565 
Phone: (360) 262-9344 Fax: (360) 262-9199 

www.napavine.wa.gov 

 

 

 

 

To: Mayor and City Council 

From: Bryan Morris, PW/CD Director 

RE: Staff Report for Council Meeting, Jan. 23rd, 2024 

 

 

➢ Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

▪ Meeting canceled. 

➢ Project Updates 

 

▪ Scots Industries- Waiting for engineer submittal. 

▪ TA- Active Construction. Waiting on WSDOT for final off-site (interchange) 

approval. Tribal artifacts were found on site. Area of tribal artifacts is flagged until 

DAHP permit can be processed. 

▪ AT&T Cell Tower- Waiting for a response from AT&T. 

 

➢ Mayme Shaddock Park 

▪ Active Construction. Currently framing the structure. 

➢ Rush Road STIP 

▪ Currently advertising for RFQ (Request for Qualifications) for a consultant. Closing 

date is February 13, 2024. 

➢ Jefferson Station: Currently in the design stage. 

➢ Free Recycling Event: The Free Recycling Event will be on May 11th from 10-2pm. It will 

be at Scout camp and will include; Household Hazardous Waste , Electronic Recycling, Yard 

Waste and Scrap Metal/Appliance Recycling. The county will create flyers and advertise on 

their webpage. 

➢ Meeting with Congresswoman Gluesenkamp Perez on January 23, 2024 at City Hall. 

▪ Possible topics of discussion will be I-5, the Rush Road exit, and FEMA mapping. 

 
➢  Operations are normal. 

 

 

 

 

 
The City of Napavine is an equal opportunity employer and provider. 

Incorporated November 21, 1913 

http://www.napavine.wa.gov/

	2024-01-23 Reg Agenda
	2023-01-09 Regular Meeting Minutes
	2024-01-23 Voucher Report
	Lewis County 911 ILA FINAL 2024 approved Res-24-022
	PD Dec 2023 Monthly Calls
	Staff Report Clerk 2024-01-23
	Staff Report PD 1-23-2024
	Staff Report PD 2023 Year - Total Calls
	Staff Report PW-CD 1.23.24

